GGGGGGGGGGG

OOOOOOOOOOOOOO




A
Contents
Directors and Advisers 2
Charrman’s Statement 3
Chief Executive’s Review 4
Directors” Report 6
Corporate Governance 14

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect

of the Ftnancial Statements 20
Independent Auditors’” Report to the Shareholders

of GNE Group plc 21
Consolidated Income Statement 23
Consclidated Balance Sheet 24
Company Balance Sheet 25
Consolidated Cash Flow Staternent 26
Company Cash Flow Statement 27
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity 28
Notes to the Finanoal Statements 29
Notice of Annual General Meeting 55
ShareGift 58
Operating Locations and Addresses 59

GNE GROUP PLC
1




Directors and Advisers

Directors

D C Port rcMa — Charrman

D L Woods - Chief Executive

| Falconer ca (sa) — Finance Director

] G West rca — Non-Executive Director
C H Glass - Non-Executive Director

Secretary and registered office
| Falconer ca {5A)

4 Lancaster Court

Caoronation Road

Cressex 3usiness Park

High Wycombe

Buckinghamshire HP12 3TD

Auditors

Mazars LLP

Tower Bndge House
St Katharine's Way
London E1W 1DD

Nomlinated Adviser and Broker
Seymour Pierce Limited

20 Old Bailey

London EC4M 7EN

Solicitors

Berwin Leighton Paisner LLP
Adelaide House

London Bridge

London EC4R SHA

FlnancI;I Public Relations
Abchurch Communications Limited
100 Cannon Street

London EC4N 6EU

Registrars

Capita Registrars
Northern House
Woodsome Park

fenay Bridge
Huddersfield

West Yorkshire HD8 OLA

Company Number
1816510

GNE GROUP PLC
2




Chairman’s Statement

The results for the year to 31 December 2007 are the first since the Group was restructured in
December 2006 As such they now only include the trading of the Group’s wholly owned subsichary
Petrol Express Lirmted without the distortions of some of the previously owned minonity interests in
steel and gas distribution which have now all been disposed of

Turnover at £166,659,000 15 shghtly down (1 0%) on last year reflecting the fact that some of the
Group’s smaller, less profitable sites were either closed down, ready for re-development or sold to
reduce debt Profits after tax, however, increased by £644,000 to £872,000 (up 282%) as margins In
both the shops and petrol retailing improved A resolution is to be put to the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting seeking shareholders’ approval for the payment of a final dividend of 1 0 pence per
Ordinary Share for the financial year ended 31 December 2007 Conditional upon approval by
shareholders of the final dividend at the Annual General Meeting this 1s expected to be paid on 18
july 2008 to shareholders on the register on 20 June 2008

Towards the end of the year the Group acquired 10 new petro! stations bringing the number of
operational sites to 63 The new sites are branded Esso and BP and on average enjoy higher sales
volumes per site than some of the Group’s existing portfolio

During the year the Board of Directors (“the Board”) said goodbye to Lord Chandos who stood down
as a Non-Executive Director after many years of providing solid and valuable advice The whole Board
joins wath me in thanking bum for his contribution and i wishing hsm well for the future His position
has been filled by Colin Class a hugh profile retail speciaist, who brings new skills and expenence to
the Board We look forward to working wath Colin over the coming years

On 18 Apnl 2008, the Group released an announcement stating that the Board had noted that day
a rise in the share price of the Group The Board confirmed that it was in discussions, which may or
may not lead to an offer for the Group, and that the Board would continue to evatuate all possible
options to defiver value to shareholders A further announcement will be made m due course, as
appropriate

2008 15 expected to see further growth as the full year effect of the new sites impacts on the results
New retail imitiatives such as the redevelopment of Mabon and the opening of a number of new
off-hicences will also help to improve the Group’s performance

The number of petrol stations in the United Kingdom continues to decline therefore those that remain
will benefit from increased sales It 1s interesting to note that with petrol and diesel prices at an all
time hugh there has been ne percewvable impact on volumes

The future for this sector 1s encouraging, freehold values of sites are still increasing 1n spite of an
otherwise difficult property market and overall performance of the Group 15 mproving The Board
therefore look forward to 2008 with some confidence

David Port
Chairman

22 May 2008
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Chief Executive’s Review

2007 has been a year of consolidatton and growth for the Company Turnover at £166,65%,000 was
down shightly (2006 - £168,289,000), reflecting the sale or closure of a small number of smaller and
less profitable sstes Operating profit for the year however increased to £1,468,000 (2006 - £936,000)
Durning the year the Group's property portfolio was fully re-valued showing a gross increase of
£718,000 Net assets at £24,031,000 are £1 71 per share (2006 — £22,326,000 were £1 61 per share)

During the year the Group closed two sites One for re-development and the other as it reached to
the end of its lease A further two sites have alse been sold, one, a closed site which has not traded
for nine years and the other as a result of a compulsory purchase order to make way for the new
Olympic village

Planning permission for developing larger forecourts and convenience stores on existing sites has been
achieved on six sites and alternative use planning has been achieved on three sites

Towards the end of the financial year 10 new sites were acquired All 10 sites are trading well and
have large well run convenience stores By acquining these 10 sites the Group has entered into supply
deals with both BP and Esso The Group 15 particularly delighted to be working with these new
supplers which, alongside our existing fuel suppler Texaco, gives the Group a good mix of major
refiners

Petrol Retall

Petrol Express Limited continued to perform well in 2007 producing profits before tax of £1,235,000
Which was better than both, previous year and budget The continued micro management of fuel
margins, stocks and shop margins has continued to give the company an unrvalled performance in
the industry The continuing dechine in the number of petrol filling stations in the United Kingdom
results in additional volumes and sales being transferred to those sites remaining in the industry Petrol
Express Limited will also benefit from this

Fuel Services

Fuel Up Limited and its subsidiary National & European Fuel Services Limited continued to grow
during the financial year Margins improved 1n the year and these two subsidiary comparnies continue
to make a positive and welcome contnbution to the Group’s profits

Property Investments

During the year, two properties, which were both former petrol filling stations, have been developed
for alternative use Working with our jomnt venture partner (Birkdale Developments Lirmited) the first at
Stockton-on-Tees was completed with all three retall units either let or in final negotiations to be let
The six apartments were completed and are on the market either for sale or to rent

A second site in Cheadle 1s being developed into a 3,000 sq ft converuence store which 15 subject to
a pre-let to a leading supermarket group and will be completed by mid 2008

A second joint venture partner (Edgewest Group) obtained planning permission for a store
development at the Group’s Hampton Hill site This development will proceed in 2008 Etdgewest
Group have negotiated a pre-let with another leading supermarket group for one unit and negotiations
are underway for a qualty restaurant group to take up tenancy of the second unit once the
development 1s complete n 2008
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Conclusion

The Group’s performance 1n 2007 has been above expectations with both, profitability and overheads
moving in the night direction Staff morale is at an all tme hugh and everyone within the organisation
15 enthusiastic and very pleased to see the Group acquinng new sites and growing rapidly

{ would Lke to take this opportunity to thank the management and staff of the Company for all therr
hard work, enthusiasm and support duning 2007 and | look forward to working with them all in 2008

Dennis Woods
Chief Executive

22 May 2008
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Directors’ Report

The Directors have pleasure 1n presenting their report on the affairs of the Group, together with the
audited finanaal statements, for the year ended 31 December 2007

Principal activities and business review
The prnincipal activity of the Group during the year under review was that of owning and operating
of petrol stations and fuel card businesses

Further details of the business and future developments are given in the Chairman’s Statement and
Chief Executive’s Review on pages 3, 4 and 5, respectively

Change of name
On 18 |une 2007, the Company changed its name to GNE Group plc from Global Natural Energy plc

Results and dividend

The consolidated profit after taxabon and minonty interest for the year amounted to £872,000 (2006
- £1,188,000 - restated) An intenm dividend of 0 5p per share was paid on 9 November 2007 to
shareholders on the register at 12 October 2007 Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, a final dividend of 1 0p per share 15 expected to be pad on 18 |uly 2008
to shareholders on the register on 20 June 2008

issue of shares

On 3 April 2007, options over 100,000 ordinary shares of 25p each (“Qrdinary Share”) were exercised
by a former Director and employee at a price of 40p per Ordinary Share On 11 |une 2007, options
over 150,000 Ordinary Shares were exercised by a former Director and employee at a price of 40p
per Ordinary Share

Annual General Meeting
Resolutions will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting as set out in the formal notice on pages
55 to 58 The fellowing explanatory notes relate to Resoluttons numbered 7 to 11, which will
canstitute Special Business

0] Resolution 7 -~ The Compames Act 1985 provides that the Directors may not 1ssue new shares
of the Company unless authonsed to do so by the shareholders The Directors currently have a
general authonty to allot urussued shares of the Company, but this authonty expires on the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting Resolution 7 1s to be preposed as an Ordinary
Resolutton to renew the Directors’ authornty and to perrmut the 1ssue of ordinary shares up to an
aggregate nominal value of £1,174,522, which represents approximately one third of the
present 1ssued share capital This authornity shali expire (except in respect of commitments which
have been made but not fulfilled) on the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held in 2009 The granting of this authorty wili ensure that the board 1s able
to maintain a degree of flexibility for the issue of shares wrthout the need to obtain
shareholders’ consent on each occasion Other than fulfilling the Company’s obhgations under
its Executive Share Option Scheme, the Directors have no present intention of exerasing this
authonty

(1)  Resoluton 8 — If new shares are to be issued by the Company for cash, the Companies Act
requires that the new shares first be offered to existing shareholders m proportion to therr
holdings, unless shareholders otherwise agree This Special Resolutton 1s to be proposed for the
renewal of the Directors’ current power to allot relevant secunties for cash without first offenng
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those shares to existing shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholdings and is imited
to the issue of shares in connection with rnights 1ssues, upon the exercise of share options under
the Company’s Executive Share Option Scheme and otherwise up to a maximum nominal value
of £176,178 (representing approximately 5 0% of the norminal value of the Company’s issued
share capital) Such power shall expire (except in respect of commitments which have been
made but not fulfilled) on the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held in 2009

Resolution 9 — The Company’s Articles of Association permits the purchase of the Company's own
shares subject to obtamning shareholders” approval The Directors consider that there may be
arcumstances in which 1t would be desirable for the Company to purchase its own shares in the
market For exarnple, in certain arcumstances, the price in the market may represent a substantial
discount to the price which the Directors consider to be a fair reflection of the Company’s value
Purchases would only be made if therr effect would be expected to improve earnings per share
and f the Directors consider such purchases to be in the best interests of shareholders generally

Accordingly, Resolution 9 1s to be proposed as a Special Resolution to renew the general authonty
of the Directors to purchase up to a maximum of 704,713 ordinary shares in the market
(representing approximately 5 0% of the Company’s 1ssued ordinary share capital) at or between
the minimum and maximum prices specified in Resolution 9 Any shares purchased under this
authonty would be cancelled and the number of shares in 1ssue would be reduced accordingly If
granted, the authenity will expire (except in respect of commitments which have been made but
not fulfiled) on the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2009, where the
Directors anticipate seeking its renewal This Resolution represents the renewal of a similar
Resolution approved at the 2007 Annual General Meeting, stnce the date of which no ordmnary
shares have been purchased by the Company

Resolution 10 and 11 - These special resolutions are to amend the Articles of Association of the
Company prnincapally as a result of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”) The following s an
explanation of the changes proposed

1 Approach

Provisions in the Company's current arbicles of association (the “Current Articles”) which replicate
provisions contamned In the Act are in the main to be removed In the new articles of association
{the “New Articles”) This 15 in line with the approach advocated by the Government that statutory
provistons should not be duplicated in a company’s constitution, for example the requirement to
keep accounting records The main changes made to reflect this approach are detalled below

2 Convering general meetings

The prowvisions in the Current Articles dealing with the convening of general meetings and the
length of notice required to convene general meetings have been removed in the New Articles
because the relevant matters are provided for in the Act In particular, a general meeting, which
1s not an annual general meeting to consider a special resolution can be convened on 14 days’
notice whereas previously 21 days” notice was required

3 Proxies and votes of members

Under the Act proxies are entitled to speak and may also vote on a show of hands (whereas under
the Current Articles a member present only by proxy shall not have a2 vote on a show of hands)
The time limits for the appointment or termination of a proxy appomntment have been altered by
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Directors’ Report continued

the Act so that the articles cannot provide that they should be received more than 48 hours before
the meeting or In the case of a poll taken more than 48 hours after the meeting, more than
24 hours before the time for the taking of a poll, with weekends and bank holidays being
permitted to be excluded for this purpose Multiple proxies may be appointed provided that each
proxy 1s appointed to exerase the nghts attached to a different share held by the shareholder The
New Articles reflect all of these new provisions

4 Corporate representatives

Under the Act multple corporate representatives may be appointed The relevant provisions in the
Act have provoked much debate and there 15 still uncertanty and differing views on the legal
interpretation of them The article prowiding for the appointment of corporate representatives has
therefore been removed in the New Articles

5 Confhicts of interest

The Act sets out directors’ general duties which largely codify the existing law but with some
changes Under the Act, from 1 October 2008 a director must avoid a situation where he has, or
can have, a direct or indirect interest that confiicts, or possibly may conflict with the company’s
interests  The requirement 15 very broad and could apply, for example, if a director becomes a
director of another company or a trustee of another orgarusation The Act allows directors of
public companies to authorise conflicts and potential conflicts, where appropriate, where the
articles of association contain a provision to this effect The Act also allows the articles of
association to contain other prowvisions for dealing with directors” conflicts of interest to avoid a
breach of duty The New Articles give the directors authonty to approve such situations and to
include other provisions to allow conflicts of interest to be dealt with in a similar way to the
current position

There are safeguards which will apply when directors decide whether to authonse a conflict or
potential confhct First, only directors who have no interest in the matter being considered will be
able to take the relevant decision, and secondly, in taking the decision the directors must act in
a way they consider, in good faith, will be most likely to promote the company’s success The
directors will be able to impose himits or conditions when giving authonsation if they think this 1s
appropnate

It s also proposed that the New Articles should contain provisions relating to confidential
information, attendance at board meetings and avallability of board papers to protect a director
being m breach of duty if a confluct of interest or potential conflict of interest arses These
provisions will only apply where the position giving rise to the potential confiict has previously
been authorised by the directors

] Drrectors’ age limt

Reference to a director being exempt from disqualification by wirtue of him attaining the age of
70 years has been removed from the New Articles, as the exemption 1s no longer necessary due
to the provisions in the Companies Act 1985 having been repealed

7 Records to be kept
The provision In the Current Articles requinng the board to keep accounting records has been
amended to refer to the Act requirements
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8 Electronic and web communications

Provisions of the Act which came into force in January 2007 enable companies to communicate
with members by electronic and/or website communications The New Articles allow
communications to members in electrontc form and, in addition, they also permit the Company
to take advantage of the new provisions relating to website communications Before the Company
can communicate with a member by means of website communication, the relevant member
must be asked mdvidually by the Company to agree that the Company may send or supply
documents or information to him by means of a website, and the Company must either have
received a positive response or have recewved no response within the penod of 28 days beginning
with the date on which the request was sent The Company will notify the member (either in
writing, or by other permitted means) when a relevant document or information 1s placed on the
website and a member can always request a hard copy version of the document or Information

9 Directors’ indemnities and funding of defence proceedings

The Act has in some areas widened the scope of the powers of a company to indemnify directors
and to fund expenditure incurred in connection with certain actions against directors In particular,
a company that 15 a trustee of an occupational pension scheme can now indemnify a director
against habihity incurred in connection with the company’s actvities as trustee of the scheme In
addition, the existing exemption allowing a company to provide money for the purpose of funding
a director’s defence in court proceedings now expressly covers regulatary proceedings and applies
to associated comparies

Directors
The Directors of the Company, who served throughout the year, except where otherwise shown, are
as follows

D C Port rcMa — Chairman and Chief Executive (to 26 February 2007)

D L Woods — Executive Director and Chiref Executive (from 26 February 2007)
| Falconer ca (sa) — Finance Director

J] G West rCca - Non-Executive Director

Lord Chandos — Non-Executive Director (resigned 6 November 2007)

On 26 February 2008, C H Glass was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Company

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the following Director retires and, being
elgible, offers himself for re-election

David Port has a Service Agreement which is terminable on twelve month’s notice
lan Falconer has a Service Agreement which 15 terminable on twelve month’s notice

Colin Glass 1s appointed on a fixed term to expire at the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2011
terminable on three month’s notice

GNE GROUP PLC
9




Directors” Report contrued

Details of the Executive Directors are as follows

David Port, aged 61, Charman He has over twenty years experience in the energy sector He was
formery chief executive of British Fuels Limited, a major distnbutor of coal, ol and gas throughout
the United Kingdom and Northern ireland Currently he 1s non-executive chairman of ATH Resources
plc an opencast coal mining business, non-executive director of Voller Group PLC, an energy cell
business, non-executive director of WMT bimited a nuclear waste consultancy business and non-
executive chairman of Leach Ceolour Limited a graphical reproduction company

Dennis Woods, aged 55, Chief Executive, with a career of thirty years in the energy industry He was
charman and cheef executive of his farmily company, Bnitish Benzol ple, which was founded 1n 1972
as Pronto Heating Oil, unti! he disposed of his interest in that company in February 2003

lan Falconer, aged 50, Finance Director, was formerly with Deloitte & Touche, Chartered
Accountants He qualified as a Chartered Accountant in South Afnca in 1986 and joined the Company
in 1996, where he was appointed Finance Director in June 1997

Non-Executive Directors

Jimmy West, aged 61, semor Non-Executive Director, was formerly a managing director of Lazard
Brothers and Co Ltd and pnior to that was managing director of Globe Investment Trust plc He is
currently non-executive charman or director of a number of public and private companies

Colin Glass, aged 51, Non-Executive Director He has thirty years of consumer business experience
and has worked with some of the biggest retalers in the United Kingdom including Boots, DSG
International plc and Arcadia plc He then went onto become chief executive of the food group
Watson and Phiip plc and was also a non-executive director of Oasis Stores plc Until recently, he was
chairman of PhotoBox Limited, the Umited Kingdom's number one destination for online photo
shanng, stonng and pnnting He 1s currently also non-executive chairman or director of a number of
private companies and a NHS Foundation Trust

Directors’ Interest
The beneficial mterests of the Directors at 31 December 2007 i the shares of the Company were as
follows

31 December 2007 1 [anuary 2007

Ordinary shares Ordinary shares

of 25p exh of 25p each

D C Port 6,000 1,000
D L Woods 79,500 5,000
| Falconer 1,166 1,166
] G West — Note 1 24,866 24,866

Note 1 10,000 of the shares disclosed under | G West are held by his wife

D L Woods purchased 10,500 shares on 7 January 2008 and purchased a further 10,000 shares on ¢
January 2008 There have been no other changes in Directors’ interests in the ordinary share capital
of the Company since 31 December 2007

Share options

The options over ardinary shares outstanding at 31 December 2007 under the Executive Share Option
Scheme are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on page 19 and in note 23 to the financiat
statements
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Transactions with Directors
Details of contracts with related parties are set out In note 31 to the financial statements

Directors and officers liability insurance
Dunng the penod, the Company and Group continued to purchase hability insurance for Directors and
officers as permitted by the Companies Act 1985

Environmental matters

The Group undertakes a review of environmental matters prior to proceeding with an investment
Once the investment 15 made, the environmental implications are monitored on a regular basts and
where necessary improvemnents are proposed

Employees

The Group's policy is to give full and far consideration to the recruitment of disabled persons having
regard to ther particular aptitudes and abiities Appropnate traiming will be arranged for disabled
persons, including retraining for alternative work of employees who become disabled, to promote their
career development within the orgarisation

The Group’s personnel policies ensure that all its employees are made aware on a regular basis of the
Group’s policies, programmes and progress and that they are consulted on a regular basis on decisions
taken which are likely to affect their interests The Group encourages the involvement of employees
in the Group’s performance through an Executive Share Option Scheme

Finandial Risk Management

The Company and the Group’s operations expose them to a variety of financial nsks that include the
effects of changes in market prices of commodities, credit nsks, hquidity nisk and interest rate nisk The
Company and Group have In place a risk management programme that seeks to mit the adverse
effect on the financial performance of the Company and Group by monitoring levels of debt finance
and the related finance costs The Group has in place an interest rate cap protecting the Group from
excessive interest rates

Given the size of the Company and Group, the Directors have not delegated the responsibility of
monitoring financial nsk management to a sub-committee of the Board The Company and Group’s
finance departments implement the policies set by the Board of Directors

Price risk

The Company and Group are exposed to commodity price nsk as a result of ther operations Given
the size of the Company and Group, the cost of managing exposure to commodity price nisk 1s
considered to exceed the potential benefits The Directors will revisit the appropnateness of this policy
should the Company and Group’s operations change in size or nature The Company and Group have
no exposure to equity securities price rnisk as they hold no matenal listed or other equity investments,
other than subsidiary and assocated undertakings

Credit risk

The Company and Group have implemented polictes that require appropriate credit checks on potental
customers before new accounts are accepted Where debt finance 1s utilised, this 1s subject to pre-
approval by the Board of Directors and such approval 1s imited to financial tnstitutions with a tugh rating
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Directors’ Report continued

A credit insurance policy 1s 1n place to mintmise the effects of bad debts

The amount of exposure to any individual counterparty 1s subject to a hrrut, which 1s reassessed
annually by the Board

Uqulidity risk

The Company and Group actively maintains a mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance that
15 designed to ensure the Company and Group have sufficient available funds for operations and
planned expanstons

Interest rate cash flow risk
The Company and Group have both, interest bearing ‘assets and liabilities Interest bearing assets
include only cash balances that earn interest at a fixed rate over LIBOR

The Company and Group hold debt at a fixed rate over LIBOR, however the Company and Group have
in place an interest rate cap to ensure the certamty of these future cash outflows The Directors will revisit
the appropriateness of this policy should the Company and Group's operations change i size or nature

Creditor payment pollcy

The Group’s policy 1s normally to pay trade creditors according to agreed terms of business These
terms are usually agreed with the trade creditors before they prowide the goods or services The
Group's policy 1s to adhere to the payment terms providing the relevant goods or services have been
supplied in accordance with the agreements The Group’s creditor days in 2007 were twenty two days
(2006 — nineteen days) The Company had no trade creditors at the year end (2006 — none)

Substantial shareholdings
On 22 May 2008 the Company was aware of the following interests in 3% or more of the Company's
ordinary share capital

Number of

Ordinary shares %

Vaimed Enterpnses Limited 3,065,000 21.7

M Vairnan 2,132,676 151
Firebird Global Master Fund Ltd and

Firebird Global Master Fund Il Ltd 1,597,050 17z

A B Usmanov 772,207 5.5

Lord Alllance 527,165 3.7

Whitland Employee Trust 466,667 33

M Cronk 431,000 3.0

The Whitland Employee Trust 15 a discretionary trust for the benefit of A A Ugarov, a former Director, and
other Russian based indviduals, none of whom 1s employed by or otherwise connected with the Company
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Auditors
Mazars LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditors and a resolution to
reappoint them will be proposed at the forthcorming Annual Generat Meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board

——— L - i O
1 Falconer ca (sA)
Company Secretary

4 Lancaster Court
Coronation Road

Cressex Business Park

High Wycombe
Buckinghamshire HP12 3TD

22 May 2008
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Corporate Governance

Corporate governance

There 15 a commitment to high standards of corporate governance throughout the Group and the
board intend so far as practicable given the Company’s size, to support the principles set out In
Section 1 of the Combined Code {“the Code”) that was formally adopted in July 2003 by the Financial
Sernices Authornity, as modified by the recommendations of the Quoted Companies Alhance However,
as the Company 1s no longer fully hsted it 15 not therefore required to comply with the Code The
following represent the principal departures from the provisions of the Code

No formal training 1s provided to Directors on the first occasion that they are appointed to the Board
Discussions are held between the new Director and the Company Secretary during which the new
Director 1s provided with written docurmentation concerming his or her responsibilities as a director of
a hsted company On the appointment of any future Directors, if the Company considers 1t necessary
to provide the new Director with formal training, appropnate arrangements will be made Although
not formally required in accordance with the Articles of Association, the Board has resolved that all
Burectors will be subject to re-election by rotation every three years All Directors are subject to election
by the shareholders at the first Annual General Meeting after therr appointment

Board of Directors

The Company 1s controlled through the Board of Directors, which during the majonty of the year
ended 31 December 2007 compnised of three Executive Directors, and two Non-Executive Directors
both of whom are considered by the Board to be independent | G West 15 the semior Non-Executive
Director The biographies of all the Directors are set out on page 10 The Charman is primanly
responsible for the efficient working of the Board and he ensures that all Directors recewve sufficient
relevant information on finanaal, business and corporate i1ssues prior to meetings The Chief Executive
15 responsible for the implementation of the strategy and policy set by the Board and the day-to-day
management of the business

The Board has a formal schedule of matters, which are specifically reserved for its decision The Board
1s responsible for inter alia, overall Group strategy, acquisitions, disposals and capital expenditure,
statutory matters, approval of financial staternents, appointments and termunations of Directors, officers
and auditors, appointment of commuttees and setting of terms of reference, review and approval of
Group performance against budgets, approving risk management strateqgy and matenal contracts, and
determiming of authonty levels within which management 1s required to operate

The Board of Directors has agreed that, if necessary, a Director may in the furtherance of his duties
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense Directors also have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary All Directors are subject to election by the shareholders
at the first Annual General Meeting after their appointment Although not formally required n
accordance with the Articles of Assocation, the Board has resolved that all Directors will be subject to
re-election by rotation at least every three years No Executive Directors have a contract of service of
more than twelve menths’ duration

The Board has established three standing committees — the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Commuittee and Nominations Committee The Committees operate within separate defined terms of
reference
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the senior Non-Executive Director, | G West (Chairman), Lord
Chandos as a Non-Executive Director, until his resignation on 6 November 2007 and C H Glass since
his appointment as Non-Executive Director on 26 February 2008

The Committee meets at least twice a year to consider and determine the remuneration, whether by
way of salary or otherwise, of the Executive Directors The Chairman attends the meetings of the
Committee to discuss the performance of other Executive Directors and makes proposals as necessary,
but he 15 not present when his own remuneration 1s being considered The Committee has access to
professional advice from inside and outside the Company The Report of the Board to the shareholders
on Directors’ Remuneration 15 set out on pages 16 to 12 and includes details of the Directors’ service
contracts

Relations with Shareholders

There 15 regular dialogue with institutional and indwidual shareholders The Company responds
promptly to inquines recerved orally or in wniting from individual shareholders on a variety of topics
The Chairman of the Company, and the Charrman of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations
Commuttees attend the Annual General Meeting and are avalable to attend enquines

Accountability and Audit

Detatled reviews of the performance and financial positon of the Group are included in the Chairman’s
Statement and Chief Executive’s Review on pages 3, 4 and 5, respectively The Directors’
respensibilities for the financial statements are described on page 20

The Board 15 responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness
Such a systern 15 designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and the system can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal
musstatement or loss There is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Group’s significant risks in accordance with “Internal Control Guidance for Directors” (the Turnbull
Guidance) The Board has considered and reviewed the nsks to the Group and the prnincipal features
of the Group's system of internal control are as follows

An established management structure compnsing the Board, with its committees, and serior
managers

As might be expected in a Group of this size, which 15 highly entrepreneunial, a key control
procedure is the day-to-day invelvernent of the Chairman, Chief Executive and Finance Director

The Board reviews quarterly financial and management information for the Group and each of
the operating companies and receives regular reports from the Cheef Executive and other
Executive Directors It also undertakes, inter alha, a detaled review of major transactions and
approves new investments

Annual budgets are prepared for each of the operating compantes, which are reviewed and
approved, and then compared against actuals

All matenal new contracts are reviewed and approved before they are signed The vast majority
of the Group’s customerss pay 1n cash or by credit card Credit insurance 1s used te mitigate the
nisk of irrecoverabiity of the major portton of trade debtors The Group’s policies and procedures
are regularly reviewed and approved
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Corporate Governance continued

The Group engages the services of a firm of independent stock auditors, who, with no advance
notthication, routinely visit the petrol stations and undertake physical venfication of dry stocks The
Group receives written reports as to ther findings and any matenal discrepancies are investigated by
the management The accounting and back office functions of the Group’s main operating subsiduary
are contracted out to an independent provider of accounting services The Board has, after considering
these arrangements, the size of the Group and the nature of its operations, concluded that it would
not be cost beneficial to have an internal audit function

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee compnises solely Non-Executive Directors The senior Non-Executive Director,
| G West, i1s the Commuittee Charrman, and serves with Lord Chandos, until his resignation as a Non-
Executive Director on 6 Novernber 2007 and C H Glass since lus appointment as a Non-Executive
Director on 26 February 2008 The Committee meets at least once a year At the invitation of the
Committee Chairman, the external auditors, Chairman, Chief Executive, Finance Director and other
Executive Directors attend the meeting The Committee overviews the monitoring of the Group's
internal controls, accounting policies and financial reporting and other matters as may be required by
the Board ] G West is a fellow of a professional accounting body and has recent and relevant financial
experience

Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committee compnises solely Non-Executive Directors The sentor Non-Executive
Director, ]| G West, 1s Committee Chairman and serves with Lord Chandos, until his resignation as a
Non-Executive Director on 6 November 2007 and C H Glass since his appointment as a Non-Executive
Director 26 February 2008 This Committee discusses and agrees any proposed nomination, which is
then put forward for approval by the Board

Report of the Remuneration Committee

This Report does not constitute a Directors’ Remuneration Report in accordance with The Directors’
Remuneration Report Regulations 2002, which do not apply to the Company as its shares are traded
on AlM

Statement of Compliance
The Company has applied the pnnciples relating to Directors’ Remuneration as descnbed below

Consideration of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration policy 1s set by the Board and 1s descnibed below Indiwvidual remuneration packages
are determined by the Remuneration Committee within the framework of this policy Directors who
were members of the Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December 2007 were
| G West (Commuttee Chairman), Lerd Chandos, until his resignation as Non-Executive Director on
6 November 2007 and C H Glass since his appointment as Non-Executive Director on 26 February
2008

The Remuneration Committee has access to independent advice where considered approprate No
external advice was taken durnng the year

The Company’s policy 1s to remunerate the Executive Directors and management fairly in such a
manner as to facilitate the recruitment, retention and motivation of suitably qualified personnel The
measurement of their performance and the determination of the annual remuneration package of
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Executive Directors 15 undertaken by the Remuneration Commuttee The man elements of the
remuneration package are basic salary, bonus payment, benefits, pension contributtons and share
option incentives The service agreement for each Executive Director comprises basic remuneration and
In certain instances participation i pension arrangements, together with a component for bonus
payments and share options Bonus payments are awarded on a discretionary basis, and are
determined by the Remuneration Committee in respect of performance

The Committee believes that performance related remuneration 1s an essential motivation to
management and staff, and its policy is to ensure that a matenal proportion of each Executive
Director’s overall remuneration 15 performance based

The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors 1s determined by the Board, and detalls are set out
below No Director plays a part in any discussions about his own remuneration

In respect of share options, the Committee believes that a key element of remuneration strategy
should be the grant of share options through the Executive Share Option Scheme in order to ahgn
more closely the Executive Directors’ interests with those of sharehalders

Service agreements

The Company has service agreements with its Executive Directors of not more than twelve months
The service agreements also provide that the Directors are entitled to participate in the share option
arrangements operated by the Company, and in certain instances are entitled to pension centributions
(annual Company pension contributions are set out in the table on page 19)

Other benefits in certain instances include private medical insurance and the provision of either a
Company car or a monthly car allowance (the rental value of the Company car or monthly car
allowance are included 1n the table below under annual benefits)

Details of the service agreements currently in place for Directors are as follows

Provision
Annual Annual  Annual Date of Unexpired Notlke for
salary benefits* bornus contract term period compensation

£000 £000 £000
D C Port 97 3 ~ 24 January 2008 - 12 months -
D L Woods 233 21 - 24 January 2008 - 12 months -
I Falconer 128 16 - 24 January 2008 - 12 months -

* Annuat benefits consist prmanly of Company car, car allowance and healthcare If a Director elects to receive a car allowance In
leu of a Company car it 1s classified as annual benefits

Subject to the notice requirements descnibed above, there 1s no provision in the service agreements for

compensation to be payable on early termination of the contract

Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors are appointed for fixed terms, normally for three years The terms of appointment
of the Non-Executive Directors are typically through a selection process to identify candidates who can
brning to the Group the desired competence and skdls
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Corporate Governance continued

Non-Executive Directors continued
The Board has identified several key competencies to complement the existing skill-set of the Executive
Directors, as follows

. Experience of the UK Energy sector,
. Public company and corporate governance experience, and
. Commercial skills to complement those of the Executive Directors

The Company’s policy 1s to ensure that Non-Executive Directors who are able to provide these key
competencies are appointed to the Board

Annual
fee Term of
£000 appointment Expires
} G West 35 3 years 2010 AGM
C H Glass 25 3 years 2008 AGM

Details of Individual emoluments and compensation
The emoluments in respect of qualfying services and compensation of each person who served as a
Director dunng the year were as follows

Total Total
year ended year ended
Salary Pension Benefits 31 December 31 December
and fees Bonus  contributions in kind 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
D C Port 99 - - 2 101 65
Lord Owen
- resigned 18 December 2006 - - - - - 70
A B Usmanov
- resigned 31 March 2006 - - - - - 12
D L Woods 252 - 7 - 259 232
A F Moshin
- resigned 18 December 2006 - - - - - 59
I Falconer 129 - 19 1 149 162
] G West® 30 - - - 30 30
Lord Chandos®
— resigned 6 November 2007 2 - - - 21 25
531 - 26 3 560 655
Motes
Q)] | G West Director’s fees for the year ended 31 December 20067 of £26,000 (2006 - £26,000) have been invoiced by immy

West Associates Limated, a company of which he 15 a director and shareholder and the balance of £4,000 (2006 -£4,0600)
has been paid as salary under the PAYE system

(2) tord Chandos Director’s fees for the penod up to 6 November 2007, the date he resigned as a Non-Executve Director, of
£21,000 (year ended 31 Decemnber 2006 — £25,000) has been invoiced by Scopetime Limited a company of which he s a
director but not a shareholder

The total emoluments, including pension contributions, of the highest paid Director, & L Woods, were

£259,000 (2006 - £232,000)

Benefits receivable consist of private healthcare cover No expense allowances or compensation for loss
of office were pad in the year
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Pensions
The Company provides defined pension contnibuttons to Directors

Gross salary pa Contributions Contributions

on which pald in the paid in the

penslon year ended year ended

contributions 31 December 31 December

made % of 2007 2006

£000 gross satary £000 £000

D L Woods 50 15 7 7
| Falconer 128 15 19 18
A F Moshin - resigned 18 December 2006 - - - 10

The Company makes contributions to mndividual money purchase schemes for each of the relevant
Directors There are no unfunded pension promises or similar arrangements for Directors Non-
Executive Directors are not eligible for any pension arrangements

Share options
Details of share options of those Directors who served during the year are as follows

Qutstanding Granted Outstanding Exercise Date of First date Final date

1107 during year 311207 price grant  of exercise  of exerclse

b C Port - 64,000 64,000 102.5p 16.5.07 16.5.10 15.5.17
D L Woods 108,053 - 108,053 40p 13.9.02 13.9.05 12.9.12
D L Woods - 64,000 64,000 102.5p 16.5.07 16.5.10 15.5.17
I Faleoner 32,992 - 32,992 297p 15.7.98 15.7.01 14.7.08
t Falconer 25,000 - 25,000 150p 16.11.99 16.11.02 15.11.09
[ Falconer 15,000 - 15,000 40p 13.9.02 13.9.05 12.9.12
! Falconer 25,000 - 25,000 280p 107.03 10.7.06 9.7.13
| Falconer - 43,000 43,000 102.5p 16.5.07 16.5.10 15.5.17

On 3 Apnl 2007, Lord Owen, who resigned as a Director and an employee on 18 December 2006
exeraised options over 100,000 shares at an exercise prnice of 40p each On 11 June 2007, A F Moshirs,
who resigned as a Director and an employee on 18 December 2006 exercised options over 150,000
shares at an exercise price of 40p each

The consideration for the grant of each of the above options was £1 00

No performance critena have been set for these share options as the Executive Share Option Scheme was
established 1n 1996 before performance conditions became a normal requirement

The market price of the Company’s ordinary shares at 31 December 2007 was 87 5p and the highest and
lowest market prices durning the year were 107 5p and 76 5p respectively

By order of the Board 2:

] G West rca
Remuneration Committee Chairman

22 May 2008
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in
Respect of the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements and the annual report n
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that
law, the Directors have elected to prepare the Group and parent company financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs’) as adopted by the European
Urmion In prepanng these financial statements the Directors have also elected to comply with IFRSs,
1issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (JASB) The financial statements are required
by law to give a true and farr view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group for that
period

In prepanng those financial statements the Directors are required to

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
. make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
. state that the financial statements comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and

IFRSs 1ssued by IASB, and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it 15 Inappropriate to
presume that the Group and Company will continue in business, In which case there should be
supporting assumptions or qualfications as necessary

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in prepanng the financial
statements

The Dwrectors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial pesition of the Company and the Group and to enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible
for safeqguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irrequlanties

Statement of disclosure to Auditor

a) so far as the Directors are aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Company’s
Auditors are unaware, and

b)  they have taken all the steps that they ought to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s Auditors are aware of that information
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders
of GNE Group plc

We have audited the Financial Statements of GNE Group plc for the year ended 31 December 2007,
which compnse Group income statement, Group and Company balance sheets, Group and Company
cash flow statements, Group and Company statement of changes n shareholders’ equity and related
notes, which have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out therein

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of
the Companies Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opimions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual report and the Financial Statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Urnion are set out in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Our responsibihty 15 to audit the financial statements In accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Audittng (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Financial Statements give a true and fair view and
are properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether,
mn our opmnion, the information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the Financal
Statements In addition, we report to you if the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if
we have not received alt the information we require for our audit, or iIf information specified by law
regarding Directors’ remuneration and transactions with the Company 15 not disclosed

We read other information contamed in the Annual Report and consider whether it 15 consistent with
the audited Financial Statements This other information comprises only the Chairman and Chief
Executive’s Statements, the Directors’ Report and the Corporate Governance Staterment We consider
the implications for our repert if we become aware of any apparent musstatements or matenal
inconsistencies with the Financial Statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other
information

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
issued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures i the Financial Statements It also includes an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the Financial
Statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group and Company's
carcumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that
the Financial Statements are free from maternial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the Financial Statements
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders
of GNE GI'OUp p|C continued

Opinion
In our opirion

. The Financial Statements give a true and farr view, in accordance with Internattonal Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, of the state of Group’s affairs as at
31 December 2007 and of the profit of the Group for the year then ended,

. The parent Company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the state of the parent
Company’s affars as at 31 December 2007,

. the Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985, and
. The information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the Financial Statements

Mo au

Mazars LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditors

Tower Bridge House
St Katharine's Way
London ETW 1DD

22 May 2008

Note The maintenance and integnty of the GNE Group plc's website 15 the responsibility of the Directors The work carned out by
the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibilty for any changes
that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were mitially presented on the webste Legislation in the United
Kingdom governmg the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from leguslation in other junsdictions
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Revenue
Continuing operations
Acquisition of Bond Hamill Limited

Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other iIncome
Administrative expenses

- before exceptional items
- exceptional items

Operating profit
Continuing operations
Acquisttion of Bond Hamuill Limited

Group operating profit

Share of associated undertakings’ profits
Share of operating loss in joint ventures
Gain on sale of properties

Finance costs

Finance income

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation
Equity minonty nterest

Profit for the year

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

Consolidated Income Statement
Year ended 31 December 2007

Restated

2007 2006
Note £000 £000
163,969 168,289
2,690 -
5,6 166,659 168,289
(162,831) (164,382)
56 3,828 3,907
- 52
(2,660) (3,534)
67 300 511
(2,360) (2,971}
1,379 936
89 -
5,7 1,468 936
87 326
3) (6)
17 79
8 (642) {953)
101 150
1,028 532
(156) (304)
872 228
- 960
872 1,188
24 6.3p 10 Op*
24 6.2p 9 8p

*On a like for hike basis, excluding the non-recurning equnty minonty interest, 2006 would have been 1 9 pence per share

The notes on pages 29 to 54 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2007

Note
Non-current assets
Goodwill 11
Propertres, plant and equipment 12
Trade investments 13
Net investment in associated undertakings 13
Joint venture undertakings 15
- share of assets
- share of habtlities
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventones 16
Trade and other receivables 17

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Financial habiities — borrowings

Trade and other payables 18
Current tax liabilities

Total current habdities
Net current llabilities

Non-current liabilities
Financial habilities — borrowings 19,20
Deferred tax lhabilities 2

Total non-current Habllities

Net assets

Equity

Share capital 23
Share premium account

Revaluation reserve

Share option reserve

Retained earrungs

The notes on pages 29 to 54 form part of these financal statements

Restated
2007 2006
£000 £000
2,012 1,438
42,485 32,106
4 4
9 1,239
1,241 357
(1,267) (380)
44,484 34,764
3,896 2,912
3,875 3,678
2,605 3,460
10,376 10,050
(204) (2,633)
(13,210) (12,507)
(200) (251)
(13,614) (15,391)
(3,238) (5,341}
(13,376) (3,961)
(3.839) (3,136}
(17,215) (7,097)
24,031 22,326
3,523 3,460
13,382 13,345
4,855 4,224
401 370
1,870 927
24,031 22,326

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 May 2008

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors D L Woods Chief Executive

. =
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Company Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Note E000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments — trade and associated undertakings 13 4 1,221
Investrments —~ subsidiaries 14 14,337 13,947
Total non-current assets 14,341 15,168
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 17 2,996 3,008
Cash and cash equivalents 556 263
Total current assets 3,552 3,271
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 (260) {464)
Net current assets 3,292 2,807
Net assets 17,633 17,975
Equity
Share capital 23 3,523 3,460
Share premium account 13,382 13,345
Share option reserve 401 370
Retained earnings 327 800
17,633 17,975

The notes on pages 29 to 54 form part of these financial statements
These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 May 2008
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors D L Woods Chief Executive

e
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Consohidated Cash Flow Statement
Year ended 31 December 2007

Restated
2007 2006
Note £000 £000
Cash inflow from operating activities 25 392 529
Income tax pad (172) (145)
Net cash generated from operating activities 220 384
Investing activities
Finance income 72 150
Proceeds/(expenses) on sale of associated undertaking 997 (25)
Associated undertaking’s share buy backs 1,344 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,422) (319)
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 790 695
Loan repaid by associated undertaking 132 -
Acquisition of subsidiary including assumption
of debt, net of cash acquired (8,374) -
Dividend received from associated undertaking - 33
Disposal of subsidiary, net of cash disposed of - 2,070
Purchase of further shares in subsichary - (2,703)
Net cash used in investing activities (7.461) (99)
Financing actilvities
Repayment of borrowings (8,604) (2,966)
Drawdown of borrowings 15,590 -
Proceeds on issue of shares 100 -
Finance costs (556) (579}
Dividend pad 37 -
Payrment of debt 1ssue costs (107) -
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activitles 6,386 (3,545)
Net decrease in cash and cash equilvalents (855) (3,260)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,460 6,720
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,605 3,460

There are no matenal adjustments made to the cash flow presented under previous UK GAAP, except for
layout

The notes on pages 29 to 54 form part of these financial statements
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Company Cash Flow Statement
Year ended 31 December 2007

Note
Cash outflow from operating activities and net cash
used In operating activities 25

Investing activities

Finance income

Proceeds/(expenses) on sale of associated undertaking
Assowiated undertaking’s share buy backs

Loan repaid by associated undertaking

Loans advanced to subsidiary undertaking

Disposal of subsidiary

Purchase of further shares in subsidiary

Net cash generated/(used) In Investing activities

Financing activities
Repayment of loan note
Proceeds on issue of shares
Finance costs

Dividend pad

Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The notes on pages 29 to 54 form part of these financial statements
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2007 2006
£000 £000
(855) (823)
2 73
997 (25)
1344 -
132 -
(1,390) -
- 2,074
- (3,203)
1,085 (1,081)
- (551)
100 -
- M
37 -
63 (552)
293 (2,456)
263 2,719
556 263




Statement of Changes
Year ended 31 December 2007

in Shareholders’ Equity

Group Share Share Revaluation Share option Retalned
caplital premium reserve reserve eamings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2006 - restated 2,836 10,969 431 268 314 14,818
Effect of change in basis of revaluing properties - - 3,779 - (375) 3,204
Related deferred tax - - (2,274) - - (2,274)
As restated 2,836 10,969 1,936 268 (261) 15,748
Gain on revatuation of properties - - 2,946 - - 2,946
Related deferred tax - - (658) - - (658)
- - 2,288 - - 2,288
Profit for the year - - - - 1,188 1,188
Total recognised ncome and expense - - 2,288 - 1,188 3,476
Share-based payments - - - 102 - 102
Issue of ordinary shares for acquisition
consideration 624 2,376 - - - 3,000
Balance at 1 January 2007 - restated 3,460 13,345 4,224 370 927 22,326
Gain on revaluation of properties - - 718 - - 718
Related deferred tax - - 54 - - 54
- - 772 - - 772
Profit for the year - - - - 872 872
Transfer revaluation reserve on
disposal of properties in the year - - (141) - 141 -
Total recognised income and expense - - 631 - 1,013 1,644
Share-based payments - - - n - 31
Payment of dividend
{0 5p per ordinary share} - - - - (70) (70)
Issue of ordinary shares under
employee share option scheme 63 37 - - - 100
Balance at 31 December 2007 3,523 13,382 4,855 401 1,870 24,031
Company Share Share Share option Retained
capital premium reserve earnings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2006 - restated 2,836 10,969 268 (75) 13,998
Profit for the year and total recogmised
income and expense - - - 875 875
2,836 10,969 268 800 14,873
Share-based payments - - 102 - 102
Issue of ordinary shares for acquisition consideration 624 2,376 - - 3,000
Balance at 1 January 2007 - restated 3,460 13,345 370 800 17,975
Loss for the year and total
recognised Income and expense - - - {(403) (403)
Share-based payments - - 1n - 31
Payment of dividend (0 Sp per ordinary share) - - - {70} {70y
Issue of ordinary shares under employee
share option scheme 63 37 - - 100
Balance at 31 December 2007 3,523 13,382 401 327 17,633

Revaluation reserve Is the aggregate unrealsed gan, net of related deferred tax, on revaluing the properties Share cption reserve is the
aggregate expense recognised for the fair value of share options granted to employees after the vesting period of the share opttons
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2007

General Information

The Company 15 a public company registered in England and Wales under the Companies Act 1985
The address of the registered office 15 4 Lancaster Court, Coronation Road, Cressex Business Park, High
Wycombe, Buckinghamshire HP12 3TD The nature of the Company’s operations 15 described in the
Drrectors’ Report attached hereto

Changes In accounting principles
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous finanaal pertods except for

(a) Adoption of IFRS

Previously the Company and ts subsidianes prepared the financial statements n accordance with UK
GAAP The Group elected to pubhish its first consoldated intenm financial statements to 30 June 2007
under [FRS wath its transition date to IFRS being 1 january 2006

(b} Introduction to IFRS — First time adoption

The rules for first time adoption of IFRS are set out in IFRS 1, First-Time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards In general, selected accounting policies rmust be applied retrospectively
in determining the opening balance sheet under IFRS However, IFRS 1 allows a number of exemptions
to this general principle

Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

IFRS 1 permits compantes adopting IFRS for the first time to take certain exemptions from the full
requirements of IFRS in the transiion penod The financial statements have been prepared on the basis
of the following exemptions

. Business combinations, prior to 1 January 2006 have not been restated to comply with IFRS 3
“Business Combinations”, and

. IFRS 2 “Share-based Payments” has been applied retrospectively to those options that were 1ssued
after 7 November 2002 and had not vested by 1 January 2006

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out
below The Group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS and IFRIC interpretations) as adopted by the European Union and with those
parts of the Companies Act 1985 apphcable to companies prepanng their accounts under IFRS The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the huistorical cost convention, as modified
by revaluation of financial assets and financial liablities at farr value through the iIncome statement No
income statement 15 presented for the Company as permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act
1985

The Group and Company have not applied the following IFRSs and IFRICs that are applicable to the
Group and Company and that have been 1ssued but are not yet effective

IAS 23, Borrowing Costs, revised 2007 (effective 1 January 2009)

IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, revised 2008 (effective 1 July 2009)
IAS 28, Investment in Associates, revised 2008 (effective 1 July 2009)

IAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures, revised 2008 (effective 1 July 2009)

IAS 32, Financial Instruments Presentation, revised 2008 (effective 1 January 2009)

IFRS 8, Operating Segments (effective 1 January 2009)

IFRIC 11, IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions (effective 1 March 2007)

IFRIC 12, Service Concession Agreement {effective 1 January 2008)

IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes (effective 1 July 2008)

IFRIC 14, 1AS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mimmum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction (effectve 1 January 2008}

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and all operating
subsidianes No income statement 15 presented for the Company as permitted by Section 230 of the
Companies Act 1985
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Notes to the Financial Statements contied
Year ended 31 December 2007

3 Accounting polides ~ contiued
Acquisitions

On the acquisition of a subsidiary, fair values are attnbuted to the Group’s share of net assets Where
the cost of acquisition exceeds the values attnbutable to such net assets, the difference 1s treated as
purchased goodwiil Where any deficiency of the cost of acquisiion below the fair values of the
identifiable net assets acquired (1 e discount on acquisition) is credited to the income statement in the
period of acquisiton Goodwill ansing on consolidation 1s recognised as an asset and reviewed for
impairment at least annually Any imparment 15 recognised immediately in the income statement and
15 not subsequently reversed

Propertles, plant and equipment

All properties, plant and equipment are recorded initially at cost At subsequent reporting dates all such
properties are revalued at fair value The profit or loss on disposal of revalued properties 15 included by
reference to net book value and any realised revaluation surplus 1s transferred to the income statement
A revaluation increase on histoncal cost 1s recogmised in the revaluation reserve A revaluation decrease
below historical cost ansing from a clear consumption of economic benefit 1s recognised in the income
statement A revaluation decrease is only recogmised in the revatuation reserve if the revalued amount
of the properties 1s below historical cost and the recoverable amount can be shown to exceed the
revalued amount The Directors review the carrying value of property, plant and equipment with
sufficient regulanty to ensure the carrying amount does not differ matenally from the fair value

Depreciation

Depreciation 1s provided on all properties, plant and equipment except freehold land and is calculated
at rates to write-off the cost or valuation, less residual value, of each asset evenly over its expected useful
{ife as follows

Freehold buildings - 50 years
Short leaseholds - over penod of lease
Plant and pumps - 10 years
Tanks - 30 years
Computer hardware - 5 years
Computer software - 3 years
Fixtures and fittings
— canopies - 20 years
— ather - 10 years
Office equipment - 4 to 6 years

Provision for impairment is made if an asset’s recoverable amount (the higher of net realisable value and
market value) falls below its carrying value

Trade investments
Listed trade investrments are inthally recognised at cost and subsequently revalued at market value

Investments in associoted undertakings

In the consolidated accounts, shares in associated undertakings are consolidated using the equity
method In the consolidated incorme staterment the Group’s share of profits and losses of associated
undertakings are shown below operating profit and the consolidated balance sheet includes the Group's
share of net assets of its assocated undertakings within non-current asset investments The finanaial
results for all of the Group's associated undertakings are based on financial statements to the end of the
relevant year

Joint ventures

An entity 15 treated as a jomt venture where the Group holds a long term nterest and shares control
under a contractual agreement

In the Group accounts, interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting The consolidated iIncome statement includes the Group’s share of the results of such
undertakings based on unaudited financial statements In the consolidated balance sheet the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets and its share of the habilities attnibutable to its joint ventures are shown
separately
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Accounting policies - continued
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost incurred in bringing products to ther present focation and
condition, and net realisable vafue

Leasing

Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts and finance leases are capitalised as plant and machinery
and depreciated over the shorter of the tease term and ther useful lives Obligations under such
arrangements are included in creditors net of the finance charge allocated to future periods The finance
element of the rental payment 15 charged to the income statement so as to produce a constant penodic
rate of charge on the net obligations outstanding in each period

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and 15 accounted for using the balance sheet habihty methoed Deferred
tax habilibes are generally recogrused for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 15 probable that taxable profits wili be avallable against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference anses from goodwill or from the initial recogrition (other than 1n a business combination) of
other assets and labiities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit

Deferred tax habilities are recogrised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investment in
subsidiaries, except where the Group 15 able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
15 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it 15 no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the assets to be recovered

Deferred tax 15 calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the hability is
settled or the asset realised Deferred tax 15 charged or credited to the income statement, except when
it relates to items charged or credried directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax i1s also dealt
with in equity

Deferred tax assets and liabdities are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable nght to set off current
tax assets against current tax habiities and when they relate to income tax levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current assets and hiabilittes on a net basis Deferred tax 15
provided on tming differences ansing from the revaluation of the properties Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 1s regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted

Share based payments

The cost of share-based employee compensation arrangements, whereby employees receve
remuneration in the form of share options, 1s recogmised as an employee benefit expense in the income
statement The total expense to be apportioned over the vesting penod of the benefit 1s determined by
reference to the far value at the date of grant Far value 1s measured by the use of the binominal
model The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best esimate,
for the effects of the non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations
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Notes to the Financial Statements contnues
Year ended 31 Decernber 2007

3 Accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments
In relation to the disclosures made n Note 22

iNon-dernivative financial instruments include trade and other recevables, cash and cash equivalents,
loans and borrowings and trade and other payables

The Group does not hold or issue denvatives or any other financial instruments for trading purposes

Available for sale financiol assets

The Group’s trade investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets Subsequent to initial
recogmtion, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses, are
recogrised directly in equity When an investment 15 derecognised, the cumulative gan or loss in equity
15 transferred to the income statement

Trade and other recervables

Trade and other recevables are stated at their value on imittal recognition and subsequently at costs less
impairment losses

Cash and cash equivolents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand and demand deposits and are measured at cost
as they have a short-term matunty

Trade payables
Trade payables are non-interest beanng and are stated at nommal value

Bank borrowings

Interest beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds receved net of direct Issue
costs Finance charges, including premiums payable on settiement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs
are charged to ncome on an accrual basis using the effective interest method and are added to the
carrying amount of the instrument to the extent they are not settled in the penod in which they anse

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the amounts derived from the proviston of goods and services which fall within the
Group’s ordinary activities, stated net of Value Added Tax Revenue 1s measured at the far value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents amounts recewvable for goods and services provided
in the normat course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes Sales of goods are
recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed Group revenue 15 attributable entirely to the
retalling of petroleurn products and other goods and services through a network of petrol stations and
by the 1ssue of fuel cards to customers wholly based in the UK

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income staternent on a straight line basis
over the lease term

Foreign exchange

Transactions of UK companies denomimated in foreign currencies are translated inte sterling at the
average rate Monetary assets and liabiities of UK companies denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated at the rates ruling at that date These translation differences are dealt
with 1in the income statement The financial statements of UK companies, which report in foreign
currencies are translated mto sterling at the closing rates of exchange for the balance sheet and at the
average rates for the income statement The differences arising from the translation of the opening net
investment 1n subsidiaries at the closing rate is taken directly to reserves

Pensions

The cost of providing the money purchase scheme for two of the Directors and nine employees 1s
charged to the income statement as it anses

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financal mformation in conformity with generally accepted accounting standards
requires management to make esbmates and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and
habilities as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and habilities at the balance sheet date and the
reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting penod
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty - continued

Estimates and judgements are conunually evaluated and are based on histoncal expenence and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
crcumstances The sigmificant judgements made by management in applying the Group’s accounting
policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill s impaired requires an esttmation of the value in use of the cash
generating unuts to which goodwill has been allocated The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to anse from the cash-generating umit and the suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value A provision for impairment was made in the penod
and the carrying value of goodwill at the balance sheet date was £2,012,000 (2006 — £1,438,000)

Share hased payments

In determining the fair value of equity settled share based payments and the related charge to the
ncome statement the Group makes assumptions about future events and market conditions In
particular, Judgement must be made as to the likely number of shares that wili vest, and the fair value
of each award granted The fair value 1s determined using a valuation model which s dependent on
future estimates, including the Group’s future dividend policy, employee turnover, the timing with which
options will be exercised and the future volatiity i the price of the Group’s shares Such assumptions
are based on publicly avaifable information and reflect market expectations and advice taken from
qualified personnel Different assurmptions about these factors to those made by the Group could
matenally affect the reported value of share based payments

Revenue and operating profit

Restated

Continuing Total Total

operations  Acqulisition 2007 2006

£000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue 163,969 2,690 166,659 168,289
Cost of sales (160,342) (2,489) (162.831) (164,382
Gross profit 3,627 201 3,828 3,907
Other operating Income - - - 52
Administrative expense (2,248) (112) {2,360) (3,023)
Operating profit 1,379 a9 1,468 936

Segmental analysis of results

Revenue - by destination

All revenue for both the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 was to extemal customers based in
the United Kingdom

Revenue - by location

All revenue for both the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 was undertaken by companies,
incorporated and registered in England and Wales

Revenue - by cluss of business

2007 2006

£000 £000

Petrol service stations and fuel cards 166,659 168,224
Metals and related activities - 40
Gas distribution - 25
166,659 168,289
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Notes to the Financial Statements conties
Year ended 31 December 2007

6 Segmental analysis of results - continued
(iv)  Profit before taxation — by class of business

Restated
2007 2006
£000 £000
Petrol service stations and fuel cards 1,275 1,017
Metals and related activities
— group compantes - (102)
- associated undertakings - 326
Non trading
- associated undertakings 116 (81)
Exceptional
~ profit on associated undertakings share buy backs 133 -
— surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of properties 167 (276)
- dissoluton of dormant subsidianes - 740
— profit on sale of associated undertaking - 160
— loss on sate of subsidiary - (113)
Foreign exchange loss - (666)
Parent company expenses (663) (473)
1,028 532

Exceptional items are matenal items of ncome or expense which dernve from events or transactions
which are not in the normal course of business and which indvidually or, if of a similar type, in
aggregate, need to be disclosed by virtue of therr size or incidence in order for the user to obtain a full
understanding of the Group’s financral performance

()] Profit before taxation - Group/associates

Restated
2007 2006
£000 £000

United Kingdom
- group compantes 12 287
— associated undertakings 116 245
1,028 532

(vl)  Net assets — by class of business
Restated
2007 2006
£000 £000
Petrol service stations and fuel cards - ongoing 21,287 21,087
- acquired in year 2,735 -
24,022 21,087
Non trading — assocated undertakings 9 1,239
24,031 22,326
(vii) Net assets — by location

Restated
2007 2006
£000 £000Q

Uruted Kingdom
— group companies — ongoing 21,287 21,087
- acquired in year 2,735 -
24,022 21,087
- associated undertakings 9 1,239
24,031 22,326
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Group operating profit

Restated
2007 2006
£000 £000
Operating profit 1s stated after (charging)/crediting
Depreciation and other amounts written off non-current assets
Owned properties, plant and equipment (299) (300)
Imparrment of positive goodwall (24) (154)
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fees — current year provision (69) (78)
— pnor year underprovision (2) (8)
Pension contributions (49) (60)
Share option charge (31) (102)
Rentals under operating leases
Properties (346) (346)
Other operating leases
Plant, equipment, offtce equipment, fixtures,
fitungs and motor cars (130) (154)
Rental income 169 155
Foreign exchange loss - (666)
Exceptional items
Profit on assocrated undertaking’s share buy backs 133 -
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of properties 167 (276}
Dissolution of dormant subsichanies - 740
Profit on sale of associated undertaking - 160
Loss on sale of subsidiary - (113)
300 511
Auditors’ remuneration 15 comprised as follows
2007 2006
£000 £000
Company
Fees payable for the audit of the consolidated annual accounts
- current year’s provision 29 40
- prior year under provision 2 8
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and former
associates for other services
- other 15 3
— review of deferred consideration on acquisition of fuel card busmesses - 2
- advice on disposal by associated undertaking - 3
- tax services (former asscciates) - 21
Group
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of
the Company’s subsidraries 40 38
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for other advice to the
Company’s subsicharies 12 -
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor’s former

associates for tax services - 18

In addition, one of the Company’s subsidianies paid £19,000 to the Company’s auditors for advice
provided for the acquisition of a new subsidiary company The amount 1s included in the costs incurred
In acquiring the company

Rental income represents income received from sub-letting of properties to third parties
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Notes to the Financial Statements contnued
Year ended 31 December 2007

8 Financing costs
2007 2006
£000 £000
Bank {oans and overdrafts 495 573
Hire purchase interest 7 5
Amortisation of loan finance costs 85 75
Mezzanine loan premum 55 210
Share of associated undertakings’ interest payable - 81
Accrued on loan note - g
642 953
9 Taxation
Analysis of tax charge
Restated
2007 2006
£000 £000
UK corporation tax based on profit for the year 187 202
Adjustment 1n respect of prior years (9 (2)
168 200
Tax applicable to associated undertakings (Note 13} 2 113
Deferred tax — current year (2) (9
Deferred tax — prior year (12) -
156 304
Profit before tax 1,028 532
Tax on profit at standard rate (30%) 308 160
Provision for net asset deficiency in subsidiaries - (313)
Non deductible expenditure 65 197
Non taxable income (72) 11
Tax effect of short term tmung differences not previously recognised (63) 15
Tax effect of current year short term timing differences not recognised (43) 126
Rate adjustment (10) (3)
Tax effect on associated undertakings results 2 13
Adjustment 1n respect of prior years 30 (2)

156 304

Factors affecting current and future tax charges

A reduction in the mainstream UK tax rate to 28% from 1 Apnl 2008, should result in a reduction in
the Group’s future effective tax rate A reduction in the manstream UK tax rate to 28% from 1 April
2008, has been affected for the short term timing differences

Factors that may affect the future tax chorge

A deferred tax asset has not been recogrised in respect of timing differences relating to revenue tax
losses carned forward as there 15 insufficient evidence that there will be suitable available profits to
enable such an asset to be recovered The amount of the asset not recognised s £1,750,000 (2006 —
£2,000,000)

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of timing differences relating to capital losses
carried forward as there 15 insufficient evidence that there will be suitable avarlable profits to enable such
an asset to be recovered The amount of the asset not recognised 1s £2,650,000 (2006 — £3,100,000)
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Staff costs

Directors’ remuneration
Fees as Directors
Other emoluments

2007 2006
£000 £000

46 51
514 604
560 655

The total emoluments, including pension contributions, of the highest paid Director were £259,000

(2006 - £232,000)

Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration

Wages and salarnes
Social secunty costs
Other pension costs

Average number of persons employed by the Group in the year,
including Executive Directors

Management
Sales and administration
Service station staff

Goodwill - Group

Cost

At 1 January 2006

Amount written back in year

Redemption in year due to negative goodwill on purchase of
49 99% investment in Petrol Express Limited

At 1 January 2007
Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 14)

At 31 December 2007

impairment
At 1 January 2006
Impairment in the year

At 1 January 2007
Impairment in the year

At 31 December 2007

Net book value.
At 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2006
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2007 2006
£000 £000
5,340 5,374
402 415
49 60
57N 5,849
2007 2006
Number Number
5 6
7 8
475 456
487 470
£000
2,898

(149)

(508)
2,241
598
2,839
649
154
803
24
827
2,012
1,438
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Goodwill - Group - continued

The recoverable amount of the cash generating unmit 1s determined on a value-in-use basis The
calculations use post tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covenng a one-year perntod Cash flows beyond the one-year period are extrapolated using the

assumptions stated as follows

Revenue

Gross profit

Overheads and finance costs
Tax rate

Discount rate

Increases £400,000 per annum

Remains at 5%

Increases at 3% per annum
Remans at 25% per annum

506

The impairment in the year ended 31 December 2007 relates to goodwill which arose on the acquisttion

of two petrol fillng stations in 1997

Propertles, plant and equipment

Group

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2006 (restated)
Additions

Revaluations

Disposals

Subsidiary dissolved

At 1 lanuary 2007
Additions

Revaluations

Disposals

Acquisition of subsidiary

At 31 December 2007

Depreciation

At 1 January 2006
Charge for year
Disposals
Subsidiary dissolved

At 1 January 2007
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2007

Net book value
At 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2006 (restated)

Office
equipment,
Plant and fixtures and
Properties machinery fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
29,380 240 1,001 31,321
151 15 184 350
2,670 - - 2,670
(634) an (82) (727)
- — (21) 21
31,567 944 1,082 33,593
2,186 85 15 2,422
885 - - 885
(1,030) 47) (22) (1,099)
7,698 702 - 2
41,306 1,684 1,211 44,201
612 147 544 1,303
76 80 144 300
(16) (6) (73 95
- - (21) 21
672 221 594 1,487
72 63 159 294
(21) (27) a7) (65)
723 257 736 1,716
40,583 1,427 475 42,485
30,895 723 488 32,106

Included above are plant and equipment held under finance leases or hire purchase contracts as follows

Net book value-
As at 31 December 2007

As at 31 December 2006
Depreciation charge for the year
As at 31 December 2007
As at 31 December 2006
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Properties, plant and equipment - contmued

All of the properties, plant and equipment were revalued at ther open market value by independent
surveyors, CBRE Chartered Surveyors, at an effective date of 31 December 2007 The valuations, which
have been prepared in accordance with The RIC's Appraisal and Valuations, Fifth Edition were arnved at
on the basis of “Market Value”, which 1s defined as “The estmated amount for which a property should
exchange on the date of valuation between a willng buyer and a wiiling seller at an arm’s length
transaction after proper marketing wheremn the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulston”

Included in properties, plant and equipment are properties with a net book value totalling £2,890,000
which are subject to option agreements where the buyer has the nght, dunng the option period, to
require the seller to sell the property specified in the agreement

Certatn Group properties are the subject of prionty charges in respect of trade and loan debt The
balance of the fixed assets provide secunty to the Bank of Scotland in connection with Group bank loans
and overdraft Additionally, the balance of some of the properties provide secunty to Texaco Limited in
connection with goods supplied by it

The Company held no properties, plant and machinery, office equipment, fixtures and fittings during
the year

Investments

£000
Group
Trade investments
Market value
At 1 January and 31 December 2007 4
Associated undertakings-
Cost
At 1 January 2007 1,217
Share buy backs durning the year (1,085)
Loan repaid dunng the year {132)
At 31 December 2007 -
Share of profits/(losses) and reserves
At 1 January 2007 22
Release of provision 98
Loss for the year before interest payable (1
Interest receivable 29
Taxation ~ current year (Note 9) (2)
Share buy backs during the year (127)
At 31 December 2007 9
Net book value
At 31 December 2007 9
At 31 December 2006 1,239
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13 Investments - continued
Investments at cost or market value before and after provision for impairment
2007
£000
Trade investment
Minster Pharmaceuticals plc 4

Associated undertakings
Flenwood Limited ?
Global Natural Gas Limited -

9
Trade investment comprises
2007 2006
Minster Pharmaceuticals plec Pharmaceuticals Great Britain 0.1% 0 2%
The associated undertakings comprise
Percentage
Country of Description of holding and
Actlvity Incorporation shares held voting rights
Global Natural Gas Limited Not trading Great Britain Ordinary shares 40.0%
of 1p
Flenwood Limited Not trading Great Britain  Ordinary shares 33.2%
of 50p

These cornpanies are located principally in their country of incorporation
The aggregate share of net assets of the Group’s principal associated undertakings are as follows

2007

£000
Tangible fixed assets 2
Current assets 21
Current habilities (112)
Group’s share (89)

Share of (£nil revenues), operating losses, In associated undertakings less finance income, and taxation
for the year ended 31 December 2007 compnse

Share of losses

in associated Finance 2007

undertaking income Taxatlon Total

£000 £000 £000 E000

Flenwood Limited (11 29 (2) 16

Global Natural Gas Limited had no revenue, income, and expense items in the year ended 31 December
2007
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Investments - continued

Company

Trade investments

Market value

At 1 January and at 31 December 2007

Assoclated undertakings

Cost

At 1 January 2007

Share buy backs during the year
Loan repaid dunng the year

At 31 December 2007

Total Investments
At 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2006

Investments - subsidiarles

Company

Cost and net book value
At 1 January 2007

Loans dunng the year

At 31 December 2007
At 31 December 2006
Held by the Company

Activity
Middlesex Energy Limited

Held by the Group

Activity
Petrol Express Limited
Thames Rico Limited
Thames Rico Service
Stations Ltmited

Dormant

Fuel Up Limited Fuel card
National & European Fuel

Services Limited Fuel card
Freeheart Limited Dormant
Bond Hamill Lirmited Dormant

Holding company

Petrol retailer

operator

operator

Shares in
subsidiary
undertakings
£000

5,703

Loans to
subsidiary
undertakings
£000

8,244
390

5,703

8,634

5,703

8,244

Investment holding company

Portion of
ordinary
shares held
and voting
rights
100%

Country of
incorporation

Great Britain

Effective
ordinary
shares held
and voting
rights

100%
100%

Country of
Incorporation

Great Brnitain
Great Britain

100%
100%

Great Bnitain
Great Bntain

100%
100%
100%

Great Brnitain
Great Bntain
Great Britain

£000

1,217
(1,085)
(132)

1,221

Total

3,947

14,337
13,947

Country
of operation

Great Britain

Country
of operation

Great Bntain
Great Bntain

Great Bntain
Great Britain

Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain

On 30 November 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the share capita! of Bond Hamull Lirited The

acquisition has been accounted for by the acquisitton method

Further details of the acquisition are set out below

GNE GROUP PLC

a4




Notes to the Financial Statements contnued
Year ended 31 December 2007

4

15

Investments - subsidiaries - continued

£000
Net assets stated at cost and fair values at date of acquisition
Properties, plant and equipment 8,400
Inventories 504
Trade and cther recevables 1,067
Cash and cash equivalents 159
Trade and other payables (6,625)
Deferred tax habilibes (770)
Net assets 2,735
GCoodwill ansing on acquisition (Note 11) 598
3,333
Satisfled by
Cash to the vendors 2,897
Costs associated with the acquisition 436
3,333

In addition, the Group assumed responsibity for £5,322,000 of Bond Hamill mited’s bank debt and
entered into a bank guarantee of £750,000 to Bond Hamiti Limited’s fuel supplier £281,000 of the costs
associated with the acquisition were paid after the year end

The summarnised income statement for Bond Hamill Limited for the period 1 Apnl 2007 (date the
financial year began) to 30 November 2007 15 as follows

£000
Revenue 20,357
Cperating profit 70
Finance costs (360)
Loss before and after taxation and loss for period {290)

In the penod ended 30 November 2007 in addition to the loss of £290,000 above there was a surplus
on revaluation of properties, plant and equipment of £498,000 and no further recognised gains or
losses

The loss attributable to the members of Bond Hamill Limited for the year ended 31 March 2007 was
£1,000

On 30 November 2007 ali the business cperations, assets and habikites of Bond Hamill Limited were
transferred to Thames Rico Service Stations Limited and Bond Hamill Limited has not traded and has
been dormant from that date The goodwill ansing on acquisition relates to the synergies between Petrol
Express Limited and Bond Hamuill Limited

Investments - Joint ventures

2007
£000
Group
Cost
At 1 fanuary (23)
Additions — share of assets 8384
Additions - share of lhabilities (887)
At 31 December (26)
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Investments - joint ventures - continued
The Group’s share of the net assets and income and expenses of the joint ventures for the year ended
31 December 2007 are

Current Current
assets Iiabilities Revenues Loss
£000 £000 £000 £000
TRS Developments Lirmited 404 (405) - -
TRS Developments (Stockton) Limited 51 (534) 45 -
TRS Developments {(Cheadle) Limited 326 (328) - 3
1,241 {1.267) 45 3)
The joint ventures had £nil noen-current assets and non-current liabibties at 31 December 2007
Effective
ordinary
shares held
Country of and voting Country
Actlvity incorporation rights of operation
TRS Developments Lmited  Property development Great Britain 50%  Great Bntain
TRS Developments (Stockton)
Limuted* Property development Great Britain 50%  Great Britain
TRS Developrments
{Sparkbrook) Limited* Property development Great Britain 50%  Great Bntain
TRS Developments
(South Shields) Limited* Property development Great Britain 50%  Creat Britain
TRS Developments (Cheadle)
Limited* Property development Great Bntain 50%  Great Britain
TRS Developments (Wigan)
Limited* Property development Great Britain 50%  Great Britain
TRS Developments (Glasgow)
Lrmited* Property development Great Britain 50%  CGreat Britain
*100% held by TRS Developments Limited
Company Country of Shares Country
Activity incorporation held of operation
Rico Partners LLP Property development Great Bntain 50%  Great Britain
inventories - Group
2007 2006
£000 £000
Goods for resale 3,896 2,912

The cost of inventones recogrised as an expense and included in cost of sales amounted to

£151,640,000 (2006 — £153,367,000)

Trade and other recelvables

Group Company Group Company
2007 2007 2006 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year-
Trade debtors 2,552 - 1,908 -
Amounts owed by subsidiaries - 1,390 - 390
Consortium relief recoverable - 231 - 23
Other debtors 770 16 1,303 1,036
Prepayments and accrued income 553 8 467 -
3,875 1,645 3,678 1,657
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary - 1,351 - 1,351
3,875 2,996 3,678 3,008

There 15 no significant exposure to credit nsk because 100% of sales are on a cash, credit card or debit
card basis Where sales are on a credit basis they are credit insured
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19

20

Trade and other payables

Group Company Group Company

2007 2007 2006 2006

£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade creditors 9,814 - 8,395 -
Other tax and social secunty 558 - 609 -
Other creditors 311 17 907 339
Accruals and deferred income 2,527 143 2,596 125
13,210 260 12,507 464

Included in the Group’s trade creditors at 31 December 2007 1s £4,075,000 (2006 —

is secured by Deeds of Prionty relating to five (2006 - five) of the Group’s freehold
properties

£6,080,000) which
and long leasehold

The amounts due n respect of other Group loans are secured by a first legal charge on one of the
Group's freehold properttes The bank loans and overdraft are secured by a fixed and floating charge

on Group properties and other assets

Non-current liabilities - Financial liabilities — borrowlngs - Group

2007
£000
Bank loans 12,476
Other loan 200
Net obhgations under hire purchase contract -
13,376
Net obligations under hire purchase contract are repayable as follows — Group
2007
£000
Repayable within one year 4
Repayable between one and five years -
4
Finance charge allocated to future periods -
4
Included in habilitres due within one year (4)
Financial Habilities - borrowings - Group
2007
£000
Wholly repayable within five years
By instalments — at 1% over LIBOR 1,100
By instalments — at 1 5% over LIBOR 4,080
By instalments — at 2 125% over LIBOR -
Not by instalments — at 4 625% over LIBOR -
Net obligations under hire purchase contracts 4
5.184
After five years
By mstalments — at 1 5% over LIBOR 8,510
13,6%4
Un-amortised issue costs (114)
13,580
Amount due within one year (204)
13,376
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2006
£000

2,857
1,100

3,961

2006
£000

24

30
(%)

21
(17)

2006
£000

1,300

2,765
2,600
21

6,686

6,686
(92)

6,594
(2,633)

3,961
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22

Financial liabilities - borrowings - Group - continued

The bank ioan and overdraft all relate to the Petrol Express Limsted group and are secured by a fixed
and floating charge on i1ts properties and 1ts other assets The amounts due in respect of the Group's

other loan 1s secured by a first legal charge on four (2006 - four) of its freehold properties

2007
£000
Amounts falling due
In one year or less 204
Between one and two years 1,280
Between two and five years 3,600
After five years 8,610
13,694
Un-amortised tssue costs (114)
13,580
Deferred tax liabilities - Group
Movement on deferred taxation balance in the year
At 1 January 2006 (restated)
Credit to income statement
Movement Iin year
At 1 January 2007 (restated)
Credit to income statement (Note 9)
Movement in the year
Acquisition of subsidiary
At 31 December 2007
Analysis of deferred tax balance
2007
£000
On revaluation of properties 3,636
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation 203
No deferred tax 15 provided in the Company 3,839

Financial instruments

006
£000

2,633
3,153
900

6,686

(92)

6,594

£000

2,487
()

658

3,136

14)
(33)
770

3,839

Restated
2006
£000

2,932
204

3,136

The Group’s investment and trading actvities are funded by shareholders’” funds, bank and other loans

The Group does not trade in financial instruments

The Group's treasury policies and debt financing gperations are

0] Funds generated by trading activies, that are surplus to immediate financing requirements, are
held on etther current accounts or short term deposit accounts, until required to settle habilives

(n) The Group has one princpal form of debt instrument being long term bank and other loans,
secured on the freehold/leasehold properties, used to finance the acquisition of the petrol

stations
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(a}

(b)

Financlal instruments - continued

Financlal instruments by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below

The far value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are as follows

Assets as per balance sheet - loans and recelvables

2007 2007 2006 2006
Group Company Group Company
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade investments 4 4 4 4
Trade and other receivables 3,875 2,996 2912 3,008
Cash and cash equivalents 2,605 556 3,460 263
6,484 3,556 6,376 3,275
The ageing of trade recevables at the year end was
2007 2006
£000 £000
Not past due 2,548 1,610
Past due 0 - 30 days 14 301
Past due 31 — 120 days {10) 3
2,552 1,908
Liabilities as per balance sheet - other financial liabilities
2007 2007 2006 2006
Group Company Group Company
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade and other payments 13,210 260 12,507 464
Borrowings 13,580 - 6,594 -
26,790 260 19,101 464

Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2007 the currency and interest rate profile of the financial assets and habilities of the

Group was as follows

2007 2007 2006 2006
Floating Zero Floating Zero
rate rate rate rate
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Sterling 2,605 - 3,417 -
US dollar - - 43 -
2,605 - 3,460 -
Financial liabihties
Sterling 13,580 - 6,594 -

Interest rates on floating rate bank deposits and habilities are based on the relevant national inter bank
offered rates The Group has no fixed interest rate assets or habilites

A nise In interest rates of 1% will decrease profit before tax by approximately £100,000 per annum
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(e)

23

Financial Instruments - continued

Falr values of financial assets and liabilities

2007 2007 2006 2006

Net carrying Estimated  Net carrying Estimated

amount falr value amount fair value

£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade investments 4 4 4 4

Trade and other recevables 3,875 2,996 2,912 3,008

Cash and short-term deposits 2,605 2,605 3,460 3,460

Borrowings

Short-term borrowings and current

portion of long-term borrowings (204) (204) (2,633) (2,633)

Long-term borrowings (13,376) (13,376) (3,961) (3,961)

The fair value of short-term portion of long-term borrowings and long-term borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing rates

Maturity of financial liabilities
The matunty profle of the Group’s financia! habilities is as follows

2007 2006

£000 £000

In one year or less, or on demand 183 2,553
In more than one year but not more than two 1,259 3141
In more than two years, but not more than five years 3,573 900
After five years 8,565 -
13,580 6,594

Other price risk

A 10% fall/nse in the valuation of properties, plant and equipment would decrease/increase net assets
by approximately 18%

Share capital

2007 2007 2006 2006
£000 Number £000 Number
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 25p each 5,000 20,000,000 3,750 15,000,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 25p each 3,523 14,094,266 3,460 13,844,266

On 3 Apnl 2007, options over 100,000 ordinary shares were exercised by a former Director and
employee at a price of 40p per ordinary share On 11 June 2007, options over 150,000 ordinary shares
were exercised by a former Director and employee at a price of 40p per ordinary share

The following cptions to subscribe for ordinary shares have been granted under the Executive Share
Option Scheme, to six current employees (2006 — four current and two former employees)

Exerclse
Year of price per 2007 2006
grant Exercise period share Number Number
1998 15 july 2001 to 14 july 2008 297p 32,992 32,592
1999 16 November 2002 to 15 November 2009 150p 15,000 200,000
2000 21 September 2003 to 20 September 2010 300p - 60,000
2002 13 September 2005 to 12 September 2012 40p 138,053 388,053
2003 1 July 2006 to 30 June 2013 260p - 150,000
2003 10 july 2006 to 9 july 2013 280p 25,000 25,000
2007 16 May 2010 to 15 May 2017 102.5p 260,000 -

481,045 856,045
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23 Share capital - continued
The unexercised share options over ordinary shares held by the Director, who served during the vear,
under the Executive Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the Corporate Govemance Report on page
19 Those held by the employees (including two former Directors) were as follows
Granted Exercired Lapsed Date First Final
Outstanding during during during Outstanding Exerclse of date of date of
1107 year year year 31207 price grant exercise exercise
175,000 - - (175,000) - 150p 16.1199 161102 151109
60,000 - - (60,000) - 300p 21900 21903 20910
265,000 - (250,000) - 15,000 40p 139.02 13905 12912
150,000 - - (150,000) - 260p 17.03 1706 30613
- 89,000 - - 89,000 102 Sp 16 5.07 16510 15517
650,000 89,000 (250,000) (385,000) 104,000
The farr value of services received in return for share options granted 15 based on the far value of the
share options granted using the Binominal model with the following inputs
2007 2006
Share price and exercise pnce 101p 260p and 28Cp
Option Ife 7 years 3 to 10 years
Expected volatilty 60% 80%
Risk free rate of return 5.25% 4 01%—4 06%
Dvidend yeld Dividends to grow 3%
at risk free rate
The expected volatlity s based on volatility over the tast 10 years The expected lives are the perods
within which the options can be exercised The nisk free rate of return is the rate of interest obtainable
from 5-10 year UK gilt-edged bonds
A reconohation of share option movements over the year to 31 December 1s shown below
2007 2006
Welghted Weighted
average average
exercise price exercise price
Options (in pence) Options {in pence)
Outstanding at 1 January 856,045 139 1,576,315 232
Granted dunng year 260,000 102.5 - -
Exercised In year {(250,000) 40 - -
Lapsed n year (385,000) 216 (720,270) 341
Outstanding at 31 December 481,045 110 856,045 139
Exercisable at 31 December 221,045 18 856,045 139
24 Basic earnings per ordinary share and diluted earnings per ordinary share

The calculation of basic earmings per share Is based on profit after taxation £872,000 (2006 -
£1,188,000 ~ restated and after minority interest) and on 13,928,101 ordinary shares (2006 -
11,864,814), being the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year

The calculation of diluted earmings per share 1s based on profit after taxation £872,000 (2006 -
£1,188,000 - restated and after minonty interest) and on 14,006,585 ordinary shares (2006 -
12,086,967), being the weighted average nurmber of ordinary shares in 1ssue and dilutive share options
outstanding during the year
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(a)

(b)

Notes to the cash flow statement

Group
Reconciliation of operating profit to cash inflow from operating activities
Restated
007 2006
£000 £000
Operating profit 1,468 936
(Surplus)/deficit on revaluation of properties (167) 276
Dissolution of dormant subsidianes - (740)
Profit on sale of associated undertalung - (160)
Loss on sale of subsidiary undertaking - 113
Profit on associated undertakings share buy backs (133) -
Depreciation and impairment charges 318 454
Increase in inventories (984) (91)
Increase n trade and other recewvables (597) (338)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 456 (620)
Share option compensation n 102
Currency translation differences - 597
Cash inflow from operating actvities 392 529
Analysis of net debt
At Other At 31
1 January Cash non-cash December
2007 flow movements* 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 3,460 (855) - 2,605
Debt due after one year (3,961) (8,127) (1.288) (13,376)
Debt due within one year (2,633) 1,120 1,309 (204)
(3,134) (7,862) 23 (10,975)

* Other non-cash movements in year ended 31 December 2007 15 reclassificatrion of £1,309,000 of debt due wathin one year to that
due after one year as a result of the revised banking facility entered in the year and £21,000 net crease in the year In unamortised
loan i1ssue costs

At Other At

1 January Cash non-cash Exchange 31 December

2006 flow movermnents* movernents 2006

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cash at bank and in hand 6,720 (3,255) - (5) 3,460
Debt due after one year 6,116) 500 1,655 - {3,961)
Debt due within one year (3,517) 2,466 (1,582) - (2,633)
(2,913) (289) 73 (5) (3,134)

* Other non-cash movements i year ended 31 December 2006 15 reclassification of £1,731,000 of debt due after one to that due
within one year, £149,000 reduction in loan note ssued and redeemed in the year, and £76,000 movement in the year n
unamortised loan 1ssue costs
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Notes to the cash flow statement- continued

Company

Reconciliation of operating (loss)/profit to cash outflow from

Operating (loss)/profit

Dissolution of dormant subsidiaries

Profit on sale of associated undertaking

Loss on sale of subsidiary undertaking

Profit on associated undertakings share buy backs
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other recewvables
Decrease in trade and other payables

Share option compensation

Currency translation differences

Non-cash inter group dividend receved

Old credit balance wntten back to income statement

Cash outflow from operating activities
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operating activities

2007
£000

(405)

(260)
14

(235)
31

(855)

2006
£000

amn
(722}
(922)

272

(20)
(240)
102
494
(486)

(52)

(823)
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Explanation of transition to IFRS

This 15 the first year that the Group has presented its financial statements under IFRS The following
disclosures are required in the year of transition The last statements under UK GAAP were for the year
ended 31 December 2006 and the date of transition to IFRS was therefore 1 lanuary 2006

Exercise

Reconcillation of equity at 1 January 2007

Effect of
transition
UK GAAP to IFRSs IFRSs
£000 £000 £000
Goodwill 1,438 - 1,438
Properties, plant and equipment 25,665 6,411 32,106
Trade investment 4 - 4
Net investment in associated undertakings 1,239 - 1,239
Joint venture undertakings
— share of assets 357 - 357
- share of habihties (380) - (380)
Total non-current assets 28,323 6,441 34,764
Inventories 2,912 - 2,912
Trade and other recevables 3,678 - 3,678
Cash and cash equivalents 3,460 - 3,460
Total current assets 10,050 - 10,050
Financial hatilities — borrowings (2,633) - (2,633)
Trade and other payables (12,507) - (12,507)
Current tax liabilities (251) - (251}
Total current liablilities (15,391) - (15,391)
Net current llabilities (5,347) - (5.341)
Financial habihities — borrowengs (3.961) - (3,961)
Deferred tax habilities (204) (2,932) (3,136)
Total non-current liabilities (4,165) (2,932) {(7,097)
Net assets 18,817 3,509 22,326
Equity
Share capital 3,460 - 3,460
Share premium account 13,345 - 13,345
Revaluation reserve 1,160 3,064 4,224
Share option reserve 370 - 370
Retained earnings 482 445 927
18,817 3,509 22,326

The effects of transition to IFRS are as follows

() Increase of £6,441,000 n revaluation of properties, plant and equipment on the open market value
basis in accordance with IFRS, whereas UK GAAP’s basis 1s existing use

(1) Increase of £2,932,000 in deferred tax habihties as IFRS requires deferred tax calculated on the
revalued amounts of the properties, plant and equipment to be accounted for on the balance sheet
Under UK GAAP it 1s disclosed as a contingent liability in the tax notes

(m) Increase n retaned earnings of £445,000 s the aggregate of defiait on revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment under UK GAAP to below ontginal costs Under IFRS the properties, plant and
equipment have been revalued above historical cost

(v) Increase in revaluation reserve of £3,064,000 Is the aggregate change as a result of (1) to () above
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26 Explanation of transition to IFRS - continued
Reconclliatlon of equity at 1 January 2006

Effect of
transition

UK GAAP to IFRSs IFRSs

£000 £000 £000

Goodwill 2,249 - 2,249
Properties, plant and equipment 26,814 3,204 30,018
Trade investment 4 - 4
Net investrment in associated undertakings 4,040 - 4,040
Total non-current assets 33,107 3,204 36,311
inventories 2,821 - 2,821
Trade and other receivables 2,342 - 2,342
Cash and cash equivalents 6,720 - 6,720
Total current assets 11,883 - 11,883
Fimancial habihties - borrowings (2,817) - (2,817)
Trade and other payables (13,661) - (13,661)
Current tax lhabihties (194} - {194)
Total curvent llabilities (16,672} - (16,672)
Net current labilities (4,789) - (4,789}
Financial habihbes - borrowings (6,116) - (6,116}
Deferred tax habilities (213) (2,274) (2,487)
Total non-current liabilities (6,329) (2,274) (8,603)
Net assets 21,989 930 22,919

Equity

Share capital 2,836 - 2,836
Share premium account 10,969 - 10,969
Revaluation reserve 431 1,505 1,936
Share option reserve 268 - 268
Retained earnings 314 (575) (261}
14,818 230 15,748

Minonty interest 7171 - 7171
21,989 930 22,919

The effects of transiion to IFRS are as follows

(1) Increase of £3,204,000 in revaluation of properties, plant and equipment on the open market value
basis in accordance with IFRS, whereas UK GAAP’s basis 1s existing use

() Increase of £2,274,000 in deferred tax labiities as IFRS requires deferred tax calculated on the
revalued amounts of the properties, plant and equipment to be accounted for on the balance sheet
Under UK GAAP it 1s disclosed as a contingent hability in the tax notes

() Decrease in retained earnings of £575,000 1s the aggregate of deficit on revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment under IFRS to below original costs Under UK GAAP the properties, plant and
equipment have been revalued above historical cost

(iv) Increase in revaluation reserve of £1,505,000 is the aggregate change as a result of (1) to (n) above

GNE GROUP PLC
52




26

27

28

Explanation of transition to IFRS - continued

Reconciliation of Income statement for 2007

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Admin expenses

Operating profit

Share of associated undertakings profit
Share of operating loss in joint venture
Gain on sale of properties

Finance costs

Finance income

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Effect of
transition
UK GAAP to IFRSs IFRSs
£000 £000 £000
166,659 - 166,659
(162,831) -  {162,831)
3,828 - 3,828
(2,429) 69 (2,360)
1,399 69 1,468
87 - 87
(3) - (3
17 - 17
(642) - (642)
101 - 101
959 69 1,028
(156) - (156)
803 69 872

The £69,000 efffect of transiion to IFRS relates to goodwill which 1s no longer amortised as previously
required by UK GAAP but subject to an impairment review instead

Reconciliation of income statement for 2006
Revaluation of properties

Commitments

Effect of

transition
UK GAAP to IFRSs IFRSs
£000 £000 £000
168 1,020 1,188
168 1,020 1,188

The Group and Company had no capital commitments at 31 December 2007 and 2006

Contingent liabilities and guarantees

On 28 February 2007, the Company provided a corporate guarantee to Petrol Express Limited’s bankers
guaranteeing unconditionally and rrrevocably the payment or discharge of all of Petrol Express Limited’s

habilities to the bank

On 8 October 2007, the Group provided a bank guarantee of £240,000 to one of Petrol Express

Lrmited’s fuel supphers

On 30 November 2007, the Group provided a bank guarantee of £750,000 to one of Petrol Express

Lirmited’s fuel supplers

On 12 May 2008, the Company provided a corporate guarantee to Rico Partners LLP's bankers

guaranteeing £100,000 of its habilities
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30

N

Operating lease commitments

At 31 December 2007, the Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows

Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Other
2007 2007 2006 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000

Leases which expire

Within one year 286 164 303 179
Within two to five years 868 303 889 455
Over five years 4,815 - 5,017 13
5,969 467 6,209 647

Pension scheme

Contnbutions to the Group’s Directors’ pensions are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
page 19 The Group contributes between 2 5% and 15% of the gross salary per annum to money
purchase schemes for eleven of its employees The schemes are defined contnbution schemes and the
charge to the income statement for the employer’s contribution in the year ended 31 December 2007
15 £49,000 (2006 - £60,000) There are £1,000 within debtors (2006 - £5,000) relating to the
employer’s contributions at 31 December 2007

Related party transactions
During the year the following related party transactions took place

At 31 December 2007, the Company owed £nil (2006 — £532,000) to Vaimed Enterpnses Limited
(“Vaimed”), being funds receved on settlement of a legal matter These funds were due on demand
and had no coupon Varmed awns 21 7% of the Company’s shares and owns 5096 of Global Natural
Gas Limited

At 31 December 2007, the Company was owed £7,635,000 {2006 - £7,635,000} by Middlesex Energy
Limuted (a 100% owned subsidiary) being funds advanced to acquire its 50 01% investment in Petrol
Express Limited These funds are payable on demand and have no coupon

At 31 December 2007, the Company was owed £3,913,000 (2006 - £2,523,000) by Petrol Express
Limited (a 100% indirectly held subsidhary) bemng funds advanced to acquire the fuel card businesses,
group rehef made avallable and working capital These funds are payable on demand and have no
coupon Dunng the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company was recharged £227,000 (2006 -
£55,000) by Petrol Express Limited for administrative expenses, including Directors’ remuneration, travel
and surveyors’ fees etc , which it paid on behalf of the Company In both, the years ended 31 December
2007 and 2006, Petrol Express Limited has provided the Company with office faciities at no charge
On 28 February 2007, the Company provided corporate guarantee to Petrol Express Limited’s bankers
guaranteeing unconditionally and wrevocably the payment or discharge of all of Petrol Express Limited’s
habihties to the bank

At 31 December 2007, the Company was owed £59,000 (2006 — £59,000) by Fuel Up Lirmted (a 100%
indirectly held subsidiary) for group relief made avalable These funds are payable on demand and have
no coupon

Key management personnel compensation 15 disclosed 1 the Corporate Governance section on page 18
for salares and page 19 for pensions and share options
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the twenty fourth Annual General Meeting of GNE Group plc will be
held at the offices of Seymour Pierce Limited, 20 Old Bailey, London EC4M 7EN at 11 00 am on 26
June 2008 for the purposes of considering and, if thought fit, passing the following Resolutions of
which Resolutions numbered one to seven will be proposed as Ordinary Resolutons and Resolutions
numbered eight to eleven will be proposed as Specal Resolutions

Ordinary business

1

6

To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements for the year ended
37 December 2007

To declare a final dwvidend of 1 0 pence per ordinary share payable to the shareholders on the
register at the close of business on 20 June 2008

To re-elect D C Port as a Director of the Company
To re-elect | Falconer as a Director of the Company

To elect C H CGlass (a Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Commuttees) as a Director of the Company

To reappoint Mazars LLP as auditors and to authonise the Directors to agree therr remuneration

Special business

7

That the Directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally authensed pursuant
to Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 (the "Act”) to allot relevant secunties within the
meaning of that Section up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,174,522 prowded that this
authonty shall expire on the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held in 2009, except that the Company rmay before the expiry of such authonty make an offer
or arrangement which would or might require relevant secunties to be allotted after the expiry
of such authonty and the Directors may allot relevant secunties in pursuance of any such offer
or agreement as if such authority had not expired

That the Directors be and they are hereby empowered pursuant to .Section 95 of the Act, to
allot equity secunities (as defined in section 94 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authonty
conferred upon them by the preceding Resolution as If section 89 (1) of the Act did not apply
to any such allotment provided that such power shall be limited

(] to the allotment of equity secunties where such securites have been offered whether 1n
connection with a rights 1ssue or any other pre-emptive offer of equity secunties in favour
of holders of equity secunities In proportion {as nearly as may be) to therr equity holdings
of equity securities subject only to such exclusions as the Directors may consider
appropriate to deal with fractional entitlements or legal or practical difficulties under the
laws of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in
any territory or otherwise, and

(n}  to the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (1) above) of equity secunties
(a) ansing from the exeraise of options outstanding at the date of this resolution, and/or
(b) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £176,178,

and such power shall expire on the conclusion of the Annual General Meeung of the Company
to be held in 2009, unless renewed or extended prior to or at such meeting, except that the
Company may, befere the expiry of any power contained in this Resolution, make an offer or
agreement which would or might require equity secunties to be allotted after such expiry and
the Directors may allot equity secunities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the power
conferred hereby had not expired
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Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

10

11

That the Company 1s hereby granted general and unconditional authonty pursuant to Section
166 of the Act to make one or more market purchases (as defined n Section 163 (3} of the
said Act) of any of its ordinary shares on such terms and in such manner as the Board of
Directors of the Company may from time to time determine, provided that

() unless previously revoked, varied or renewed, such authonty shall expire on the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2009, provided
that the Company may before the expiry of this authonty enter into any contract for the
purchase of its own ordinary shares which would or might be executed wholly or partly
after the expiry of such authority and in any such case the Company may make purchases
of 1ts own shares under such contract after the expiry of this authonty as if such authonty
had not expired,

(n) the maximum aggregate number of such ordinary shares which may be purchased under
this authority 15 704,713,

() the mimimum price which may be paid for an ordinary share shall be 25p and the
maximum price which may be paid for an ordinary share shall be an amount equal to
105% of the average of the middle market closing pnices for an ordinary share in the
Company as derived from the Daily Official List of the London Stock Exchange plc for the
five business days immediately preceding the day on which the ordinary share 1s
purchased (in each case exclusive of expenses payable by the Company), and

(v) this authonty shall only be capable of vanation, revocation or renewal by the Company
in General Meeting by Special Resolutton

That with immediate effect, the articles of association of the Company contained in the
document produced to the meeting (and signed by the Chairman for the purposes of
identification) be adopted as the articles of asscciation of the Cornpany in subsutution for, and
to the exclusion of, the existing articles of association of the Company

That subject to resolution 10 set out In the notice of the annual general meeting of the
Company convened for 26 June 2008 being passed and with effect on and from 1 October
2008 or such later date as section 175 of the Companies Act 2006 shall be brought into force,
(1) article 21 of the articles of associabon adopted pursuant to resolution 10 be deleted in its
entirety and articles 21 and 22 as set out in the document produced to the meeting (and signed
by the Chairman for the purposes of identification) be substituted therefor and the remaining
articles be re-numbered and (n) article 26 9 of the articles of assoaation adopted pursuant to
resolutton 10 be deleted i its entirety and article 27 9 as set out in the document produced
to the meetng (and signed by the Chairman for the purposes of dentfication) be substituted
therefor

By order of the 4 Lancaster Court

P NP Coronation Road

1 Falconer ca (5a) Cressex Business Park
Company Secretary High Wycombe

Buckinghamshire HP12 3TD

22 May 2008
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Notes
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fvi)

{ix)

As a shareholder of the Company you are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise afl or any of your nghts to attend, speak and
vote at an Annual General Meeting of the Company A proxy need not be a member of the Company

In the case of joint holders, the vote of the seior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, will be accepted to the
exclusion of the votes of any jomt holders For the purposes, senionty shall be determined by the order of the names appeanng
in the register of members in respect of the joint holding

In the case of a corporation, the form of proxy must be executed under its common seal or signed on its behalf by a duly
authonsed attorney or duly authonsed officer of the corporation

To be valid, such Proxy Card and Power of Attorney or other authonty (if any) under which it 15 signed, or a notanally cerufied
copy of such Power of Attorney must be deposited with the Registrars of the Company, Capita Regutrars, The Proxy Department,
The Regstry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU in accordance with the instructions pnnted thereon, so as to be
received no later than forty-eight hours before the time of the Meeting, or any adjournment thereof

The completion and return of a Proxy Card will not affect the night of a member to attend, speak and vote in persen at
the Meeting convened by this notice

You may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is appointed to exercise rights attached to different shares You
may not appoint more than one proxy to exerase nghts attached to any one share To appoint more than one proxy you
may photocopy this form Please indicate the proxy holder's name and the number of shares in relatson to which they are
authonsed to act as your proxy {which, in aggregate, should not exceed the number of shares held by you) Please also
indicate «f the proxy instruction 15 one of mulbple instructions being given Al forms must be signed a2nd should be returned
together in the same envelope

To direct your proxy how to vote on the resclution mark the appropnate box with an “X” To abstain from voting on a
resolution, select the relevant “withheld” box A vote withheld 1s not a vote in law, which means that the vote will not be
counted n the calculation of votes for or against the resolution If ne voting resolution indication 15 given, your proxy will
vote or abstain at his or her discretion Your proxy will vote (of abstain from voting) as he or she thinks fit i relabon to
any other matter, which 15 put before the Meeting

Pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Secunities Regulations 2001, members will be entitled to attend and vote at
the Meeting If they are reqistered on the Company’s register of members forty eight hours before the time appointed for
the Meeting or any adjournment thereof

Copies of the Executive Directors’ service contracts and Register of Directors’ Interests i the share capital of the Company
are avalable for nspecuon at the reqistered office of the Company dunng normal business hours (Saturdays, Sundays and
public holidays excepted) and at the place of the Meeting from 10 45 am on 26 June 2008 unul the close of the Annual
General Meeting

A copy of the articles of association marked to show the changes being proposed by resolution 10 together with a copy of
the rewised articles of assocation marked to show the changes proposed by resolution 11 will be available for inspection at
the Company’s registered office and at the place of the meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to the annual general meeting
unti its conclusion
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ShareGift

The Company supports ShareGit the share donation chanty (registered chanty number 1052686)
Shareholders who have a small number of shares which might be uneconomic to sell are able to
donate them to ShareCift Donated shares are aggregated and sold by ShareGift, the proceeds being
passed on to a wide range of UK charities Donating shares to chanty gives nise to neither a gain nor
a loss for UK Capital Gains Tax purposes and UK taxpayers may also be able to claim income tax relef
on such gifts of shares Even if the share certificate has been lost or destroyed, the gift can be
completed by obtaining a duplicate share certificate from the Company’'s Share Registrars, Capita
Registrars The service is generally free, however, there may be an indemnity charge for lost or
destroyed share certificate where the value of the shares exceed £100

Further detalls about ShareGift can be obtained from its website at www sharegift org or 17 Carlton
House Terrace, London SW1Y 5AH (telephone +44 (0)20 7930 3737)
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Operating Locations and Addresses

See Petrol Express Limited’s website www petrolexpress co uk for maps to the mdmdual sites

Abercynon Service $tation
A470, Abercynon,

Mountain Ash

CF45 4YX

Beechley Service Statlon
Kingsmill Road,

Hightown,

Wrexham LL13 8NH

Bloxham Service Station
South Newington Road,
Bloxham, Nr Sanbury,
Oxfordshire OX15 4QF

Cardinal Service Station
Newport Road, Cardiff,
South Glamorgan

CF23 9AD

Fosseway Service Station
Lower Slaughter,

Bourton on the Water,
Gloucester GL54 2EY

Henleaze Service Station
Northumbna Dnve,
Henleazs, Bristol BS99 4HN

Mumbles Service Statlon
Mumbles Road,

Swansea

SA3 5AS

Penn Service Station
Warstones Road,

Penn, Wolverhampton,
West Midlands Wv4 418

Primrose Hill Service Statlon
Primrose Hill,

Kings Langley,

Hertfordshire W4 7LU

Rose Green Service Station
Hewarts Lane,

Bognor Regis,

Sussex PO21 30§

Sunderland Service Station
Pallion New Road,
Sunderland,

Tyne and Wear SR4 6UA

Teddington Hands Service Station

A435 A438 Roundabout,
Teddington Hands,

The Brdge, Tewhesbury,
Gloucester GL20 8NE

Walters Ash Service Station
Main Road,

Walters Ash,

Buckinghamshire HP14 4XC

Whelley Road Service Station
Whelley Road,

Wwigan,

Lancashure WK1 3PG

Petrol Express BP Bliston
willenhall Road,

Bilston,

West Midlands WV14 6NP

Petrol Express BP Netherton
Halesowen Road,

Netherton, Dudley,

West Miudlands DY2 9PS

Bargoed Service Station
Station Road, Bargoed,
Mid Glamorgan

CFB 9AL

Blckerstaffe Service Station
Four Lane Ends, Bickerstaffe,
Ommskirk,

Lancashire L39 OHF

Bridge Service Station
Birmingham Road,
Hopwood,

Worcester B48 7AR

Castleford Service Station
Park Road, Glass Houghton,
Castleford,

West Yorkshire WF10 4RW

Hamworthy Service Statlon
Blandford Road,

Poole,

Dorset BH16 5BN

Tag Lane Service Station
Tag Lane, Preston,
Lancashue PRZ 7A8

Overend Service Station
Corngreaves Road,
Cradley,

West Midiands 864 7EA

Porth Service Statlon
North Road, Porth,
Rhondda,

Md Glamorgan CF39 $5H

Pwilmeyric Service Station
Pwlimeync,

Chepstow,

Gwent NP6 6LF

Rowberrow Service Statlon
Bridgewater Road,

Winscombe,

Somerset BS25 1Q)

Stourbridge Service Station
Hagley Road, Old Swinford,
Stourbridge,

West Midlands DY8 2j)

Tollhouse Service Statlon
Alcester Road,

Stratford upon Avon,
Warwickshire

V37 of

Walsgrave Service Station
Hinckley Road,

Walsgrave,

Coventry CV2 20N

Wick Service Statlon
London Road,

Wick,

Bristol B530 53)

Petrol Express BP Cleadon
Shields Road,

Cleadon, Sunderland,

Tyne and Wear SR6 7PQ

Petrol Express BP 5tockton
Norton Road,

Stockton-on Tees,

Cleveland T520 2PN

Battersea Park Service Statlon
15 25 Parkgate Road,

London

SW11 4NP

Binley Woods Service Station
Eastern By-Pass,

Coventry,

Warwickshire CV3 222

Brandhall Service Station
453 Wolverhampton Road,
Oldbury, West Midlands

B68 8DD

Derry Service Station
Londonderry Lane,
Oldbury, West Midlands
B67 7EN

Havant Road Service Statlon
87 Havant Road,

Emsworth,

Hampshire PO10 7LE

Laleston Service Station
Laleston, Nr Bndgend,
Mid Glamorgan CF32 OLY

Panteg Service Station
Panteq Road,

Felinfoel, Uanell, Dyfed
SA15 3TF

Premier Service Station
Newport Road,

Cardift

CF23 9AE

Radford Service Statlon
Jubilee Crescent,

Radford,

Coventry CV6 3EX

Rugby Service Station
Leicester Road,

Rugby

V21 10)

Tawe Service Statlon
Neath Road,

Landore,

Swansea $A1 2|G

Tondu Service Statlon
Maesteg Road,

Tondu, Nr Bndgend,
Mid Glamorgan

CF32 9DS

Wandle Service Station
Bishopsford Road,
Morden,

Surrey SM4 GAP

Wolstanton Service Station
High Street,

Wolstanten,

Staffordshire ST5 OFY

Petrol Express BP Doacaster
Balby Road,

Dancaster

DN4 0jL

Petrol Express BP Watton
Victona Read,
Walton-Le-Dale, Preston,
Lancashire PR5 4BA
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Bebington Service Statlon
26 Oxi Chester Road,
Bebington, Wirrel

CH63 7LQ

Blackfield Service Station
Hampion Lane, Biackfield,
Seuthampton,

Hampsture SO45 TWE

Bearwood Service Station
Sandon Road,

Bearwood,

West Midlands B66 4AB

Elton Service Station
Elton Comer,

Newnhamn on Severn,
Gloucester GL14 1]Q

Haverfordwest Service Station
Fishguard Road,

Haverfordwest, Pembrokeshire
SA52 4BT

Mabon Service Station
Mabon Nelson,
Mid Glamorgan CF46 6PE

Parkside Service Statlon
icknteld Port Road,
Edgbaston, Biemingham,
West Midlands B16 08)

Prestatyn Service Statlon
Manne Road, Prestatyn,
Clwyd

LL19 7HA

Ridgeway Service Statlon
King George Road,

South Shields, Tyne and Wear
NE34 BAQ

Stanwell Service Statlion
Bedfont Road,

Stanwell, Middlesex

™9 7Y

Tipton Service Statlon
Bloomfield Road,

Tipton,

West Midlands DY4 9EB

Ton Pentre Service Station
Ystrad Road, Pentre,

Rhondda,

Mid Glamorgan

CF41 7PN

West Moors Service Statlon
Ringwood Road,

‘West Moors,

Dorset BH22 QAB

Petrol Express BP Accrington
Hyndburn Road,

Accnngton, Lancashire

BB5 1PY

Petrol Express BP Littieborough
Church Street, Littleborough,
Rochdale, Lancashire

OL15 8JA
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GNE Group plc
4 Lancaster Court
Coronation Road
Cressex Business Park
High Wycombe

Buckinghamshire HP12 3TD

Tel +44 (0)870 241 0454
Fax +44 (0)870 241 0461
E-mal info@gnegroup co uk
Website www gnegroup co uk




